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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Polytex 
India Limited will be held on Tuesday, 30th September, 2025 at 03.00 PM IST through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY	BUSINESS:
ITEM	NO.	1:	TO	RECEIVE,	CONSIDER	AND	ADOPT	THE	AUDITED	STANDALONE	FINANCIAL	
STATEMENTS	OF	THE	COMPANY	FOR	THE	FINANCIAL	YEAR	ENDED	31ST	MARCH,	2025	
TOGETHER	WITH	THE	REPORTS	OF	BOARD	OF	DIRECTORS	AND	THE	AUDITORS	THEREON	
AND	IN	THIS	REGARD,	TO:

To consider and if thought �it, to pass, with or without modi�ication(s), the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED	THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements including Balance Sheet of the 
Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Pro�it and loss, the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and cash �lows for the year ended on that date together with the 
reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are 
hereby considered and adopted.”

ITEM	NO.	2:	TO	APPOINT	MR.	ARVIND	MULJI	KARIYA	(DIN:	00216112),	WHO	RETIRES	BY	
ROTATION	 AND,	 BEING	 ELIGIBLE,	 OFFERS	 HIMSELF	 FOR	 RE-APPOINTMENT	 AS	 A	
DIRECTOR	OF	THE	COMPANY	AND	IN	THIS	REGARD:

To consider and if thought �it, to pass, with or without modi�ication(s), the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED	 THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable 
provisions of The Companies Act, 2013; Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya (DIN: 00216112),, who retires by 
rotation at this meeting, and being eligible, has offered himself for reappointment, be and is 
hereby re-appointed as a Non-Executive Non- Independent Director of the Company.”

ITEM	NO.	3:	TO	RE-APPOINT	M/S.	AGARWAL	JAIN	&	GUPTA	(FIRM	REGISTRATION	NO.:	
0135838C),	AS	STATUTORY	AUDITORS	OF	THE	COMPANY	FOR	THE	SECOND	TERM	OF	2	
YEARS:

To appoint Statutory Auditors and to �ix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and, if 
thought �it, to pass with or without modi�ication(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED	 THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modi�ication (s) or re-enactment (s) thereof for the time 
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being in force ) and other applicable provisions if any, and based on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, approval of the members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to re-appoint M/s. Agarwal Jain & Gupta (Firm Registration No.: 0135838C), be 
and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period of 2 Financial Year 
starting from 2025-26 till 2026-27 and shall hold of�ice until the conclusion of 41th Annual 
General Meeting  at mutually agreed remuneration plus applicable taxes and out of pocket 
expenses, as may be approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

RESOLVED	FURTHER	THAT Board be and is hereby authorized to �ix the remuneration of 
Statutory Auditors of the Company as recommended by the Audit Committee in addition to 
reimbursement of our pocket expense.”

SPECIAL	BUSINESS:

ITEM	NO.	4:	APPOINTMENT	OF	SECRETARIAL	AUDITOR:

To consider and, if thought �it, to pass, with or without modi�ication(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED	THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended effective April 1, 2025), and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of the Members be and is hereby 
accorded to appoint M/s. Sandeep Dubey & Associates, (Membership No. 47940, COP No. 17902) 
being a Peer-Reviewed Company Secretary, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct 
the Secretarial Audit for a term of �ive consecutive �inancial years commencing from FY 2025-26 
to FY 2029-30, on such remuneration as may be �ixed and approved by the Board of Directors in 
consultation with the said Auditor.

RESOLVED	FURTHER	THAT Board be and is hereby authorized to �ix the remuneration of 
Statutory Auditors of the Company as recommended by the Audit Committee in addition to 
reimbursement of our pocket expense.”

ITEM	NO.	 5:	 APPROVAL	 FOR	MATERIAL	 RELATED	 PARTY	 TRANSACTION(S)	WITH	MR.	
ARVIND	 MULJI	 KARIYA	 (DIN:	 00216112)	 DIRECTOR	 OF	 THE	 COMPANY	 UNDER	
REGULATION	23	OF	THE	SEBI	(LISTING	OBLIGATIONS	AND	DISCLOSURE	REQUIREMENTS),	
2015	 AND	 PURSUANT	 TO	 THE	 PROVISIONS	 OF	 SECTION	 180(1)(C)	 AND	 OTHER	
APPLICABLE	PROVISIONS,	IF	ANY,	OF	THE	COMPANIES	ACT,	2013	:

To consider and, if thought �it, to pass, with or without modi�ication(s), the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED	THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 and other applicable provisions 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, pursuant to 
the provisions of Section 180(1)© and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
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2013 and the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions and  consent of the Members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Company to enter into related party transaction(s) 
with Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya, (DIN: 00216112) Director and CFO of the Company, for availing 
loan(s)/�inancial assistance up to an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 5,00,00,000/- (Five 
Crores Only), on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed between the Company and 
the said Director.

RESOLVED	FURTHER	THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee 
thereof) be and is hereby authorized to negotiate, �inalize, execute and sign the necessary 
documents/agreements, and to take such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution.”

By	orders	of	the	Board	of	Directors
For	Polytex	India	Limited

Sd/-
Anju	Surajsingh	Chauhan
Company	Secretary

REGISTERED	OFFICE:
5th Floor, 5B, Technopolis Knowledge Parkmahakali Caves Road,
Nr. Udyog Bhavan Chakala Andheri East, Chakala, MIDC,
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400093.

Date: 03.09.2025
Place: Mumbai

NOTES:
1. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has 

vide its General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 read with General Circular 
No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, and General Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 5, 2022 
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023 have granted certain relaxations to Body 
Corporates and thus permitted the holding of Annual General Meeting(s) (“AGM”) of the 
companies upto September 30, 2023 through VC/OAVM viz. without the physical presence 
of the Members at a common venue. Hence in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and MCA /SEBI Circulars, as applicable, the 
AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM (viz. e-AGM).

2. The Deemed Venue of the 39th AGM of the Company shall be its Registered Of�ice as the 
AGM will be held through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means

3. As the AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM, the facility for appointment of Proxy by 
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the Members is not available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip 
including Route Map are not annexed to this Notice. However, the Body Corporates are 
entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and 
participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

4. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect 
of the Special Business at Item No. 4 and 5 of the above Notice is annexed hereto.

5. The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), 
to provide video conferencing facility and e-voting facility for the AGM.

6. Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are also 
required to send scanned certi�ied true copy (PDF/JPEG Format ) of the Board Resolution/ 
Authority Letter etc., together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorised 
representative(s), to the Scrutinizer atcs.sandeepdubey@gmail.com and copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.inand polytexindia@gmail.com.The scanned image of the above 
mentioned documents should be in the naming format “Polytex India Limited 39th AGM”.

7. Members are requested to notify change in address, if any, immediately to M/s. Link Intime 
India Private Limited, quoting their folio numbers.

8. In terms of circulars issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), it is now 
mandatory to furnish a copy of PAN card to the Company or its RTA in the following cases 
viz. Deletion of name, Transmission of shares and Transposition of shares. Shareholders 
are requested to furnish copy of PAN card for all the above mentioned transactions.

9. Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (‘SEBI Listing 
Regulations’) and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (‘Secretarial Standard - 2’), the 
details of Director retiring by rotation at the AGM is provided in ‘Annexure A’ to the Notice

10. Members seeking any information with regard to Register of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act, Register of 
Contracts or Arrangements in which directors are interested under Section 189 of the Act, 
and relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and in the explanatory 
notice are requested to write to the Company on or before Thursday, 25th September, 2025, 
through email on polytexindia@gmail.com  The same will be replied by the Company 
suitably.
ELECTRONIC	DISPATCH	OF	ANNUAL	REPORT	AND	PROCESS	FOR	REGISTRATION	OF	
EMAIL	ID	FOR	OBTAINING	COPY	OF	ANNUAL	REPORT,	USER	ID	&	PASSWORD	AND	
REGISTRATION	OF	EMAIL	ID	FOR	E-VOTING:

11. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, Notice of the AGM along 
with the Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 
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Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company, RTA or CDSL / NSDL 
(“Depositories”). Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2023-24 will also 
be available on the Company’s website www.polytexindia.com, website of the Stock 
Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com  and on the website of NSDL at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com

12. Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not updated their email addresses 
with the Company are requested to update their email addresses by writing to the Company 
at polytexindia@gmail.com or to the RTA at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in  along with the 
copy of the signed request letter mentioning the name and address of the Member, self-
attested copy of the PAN card, and self-attested copy of any document (eg.: Aadhaar, Driving 
License, Election Identity Card, Passport) in support of the address of the Member.

13. Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register / update their 
email addresses with the relevant Depository Participants. In case of any queries / 
d i f � i c u l t i e s  i n  re g i s t e r i n g  t h e  e - m a i l  a d d re s s ,  M e m b e r s  m ay  w r i t e  t o 
polytexindia@gmail.com or rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in If you are an Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login 
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

14. Alternatively members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in  for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

15. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

16. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ 
CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and other 
applicable circulars and noti�ications issued (including any statutory modi�ications or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force and as amended from time to time, companies 
are allowed to hold EGM/AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual 
means (OAVM), without the physical presence of members at a common venue. In 
compliance with the said Circulars, EGM/AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM.

INSTRUCTIONS	FOR	MEMBERS	FOR	ATTENDING	THE	AGM	THROUGH	VC/OAVM	ARE	
AS	UNDER:

17. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the 
NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned below for 
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Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” 
placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 
VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the “EVEN 136510” of Company will be displayed. 
Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or 
have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-
Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

18. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and afterthe 
scheduled t ime of  the  commencement  of  the  Meet ing  by  fol lowing the 
procedurementioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM willbe made available for 1000 members on �irst come �irst served basis. This 
wi l l  not include large  Shareholders  (Shareholders  holding  2% or  more 
shareholding),Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, 
theChairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
andStakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the 
EGM/AGMwithout restriction on account of �irst come �irst served basis

19. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM with use of technology can send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 700025.

20. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

21. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
polytexindia.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the website of the Stock Exchange 
i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of 
NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com

22. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

23. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions ofthe 
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and MCA 
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 
and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.

PROCEDURE	 TO	 RAISE	 QUESTIONS/SEEK	 CLARIFICATIONS	 WITH	 RESPECT	 TO	
ANNUAL	REPORT:
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24. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may 
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email 
address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at 
polytexindia@gmail.com  from Tuesday 23rd September, 2025 (9:00 A.M. IST) to Friday, 
26th September, 2025 (5:00 P.M. IST). Those Members who have registered themselves as a 
speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The 
Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 
availability of time for the AGM. The queries should be precise and in brief to enable the 
Company to answer the same suitably depending on the availability of time at the meeting

Members many send their questions in advance mentioning their name, DP ID and Client 
ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at polytexindia@gmail.com during aforesaid 
period. The same will be replied by the Company suitably

HELPDESK	 FOR	 INDIVIDUAL	 SHAREHOLDERS	 HOLDING	 SECURITIES	 IN	 DEMAT	
MODE	FOR	ANY	TECHNICAL	ISSUES	REALTING	TO	LOGIN	THROUGH	DEPOSITORIES	
i.e.	NSDL	AND	CDSL

25.	 Contact	Details

VOTING	THROUGH	ELECTRONIC	MEANS

26. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations2015 
(as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 
2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting 
to itsMembers in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this 
purpose,the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorizedagency. 
The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system aswell as venue 
voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.comor call at 022 - 4886 7000

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll 
free no. 1800-21-09911
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27. The Company has appointed Mr. Sandeep Dubey, (Membership No. 47940, COP No. 17902), 
Practicing Company Secretary as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting process in a fair 
and transparent manner.

28. The Members who have cast their vote by remote E-voting prior to the AGM may also 
attend/ participate in the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote 
again during the AGM. Members attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote 
e-voting shall be eligible to cast their vote through e-voting during the AGM. Members 
holding shares in physical form are requested to access the remote e-voting facility 
p r o v i d e d  b y  t h e  C o m p a n y  t h r o u g h  N S D L  e - v o t i n g  s y s t e m  a t 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ . Members who do not have the User ID and Password for 
e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the 
remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice. Further members can also use the 
OTP based login for logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL.

29. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025.

30. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password con�idential. Login to the E-voting website will be 
disabled upon �ive unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/ Password?” or “Physical User Reset 
Password?” option available on https://www.evoting.nsdl.com  to reset the password.

31. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section 
of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Sagar S. Gudhate, 
Senior Manager atevoting@nsdl.com

32. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for 
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

33. Any person and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the Company and 
becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and holding 
shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 may obtain the login ID and 
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are 
already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID 
and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your 
password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 
2499 7000. In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who 
acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of 
the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 may 
follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under “Access to NSDL e-Voting system”.
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THE	INSTRUCTIONS	FOR	MEMBERS	FOR	REMOTE	E-VOTING	ARE	AS	UNDER:-

34. The remote e-voting period begins on Saturday 27th September, 2025 (at 9:00 A.M. IST) till 
Monday, 29th September, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. IST). The remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 
Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025, may cast their vote electronically.

35. The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below:

Step	1:	Access	to	NSDL	e-Voting	system.

A)	Login	method	for	e-Voting	and	joining	virtual	meeting	for	Individual	shareholders	
holding	securities	in	demat	mode
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility

Login	method	for	Individual	shareholders	holding	securities	in	demat	mode	is	given	
below:

Type	of	
shareholders		 		Login	Method
 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the 
e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched click on the 
“Bene�icial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and 
you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on options available against 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-
directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” 
or click at  https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL.
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3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Veri�ication Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 
seamless voting experience.

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, theycan login 
through their user id and password. Option will be made available to 
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to 
l o g i n  E a s i  / E a s i e s t  a re  re q u e s te d  to  v i s i t  C D S L  we b s i te 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and 
then user your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, 
the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that 
the user can visit the eVoting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with CDSL
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available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New 
System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link 
available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 
be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and 
also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on 
e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and you will 
be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.

Important	note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

B)		 Login	 Method	 for	 shareholders	 other	 than	 Individual	 shareholders	 holding	
securities	in	demat	mode	and	shareholders	holding	securities	in	physical	mode.

How	to	Log-in	to	NSDL	e-Voting	website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Veri�ication Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 
i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their depository 
participants
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4. Your User ID details are given below:

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 
login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the �irst time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i)  If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 
‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent 
to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment 
i.e. a .pdf �ile. Open the .pdf �ile. The password to open the .pdf �ile is your 8 digit 
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf �ile contains your ‘User ID’ and 
your ‘initial password’. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process	for	those	shareholders	whose	email	ids	are	not	registered.

Manner	of	holding	shares	i.e.	Demat	
(NSDL	or	CDSL)	or	Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL.

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL.

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form.

	Your	User	ID	is:

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID
For example if your DP ID is In300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******.

16 Digit Bene�iciary ID
For example if your Bene�iciary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12**************

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 136510 then user ID is 
101456001***
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6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten 
your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes 
on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 
check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step	2:	Cast	your	vote	electronically	and	join	General	Meeting	on	NSDL	e-Voting	system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.  After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “ ” in which 
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2.  Select “EVEN 136510” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining 
virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General 
Meeting”. 

3.  Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4.  Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and 
also “Con�irm” when prompted. 

5.  Upon con�irmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6.  You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 
on the con�irmation page. 

7. Once you con�irm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote.
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General	Guidelines	for	shareholders
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. 
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized 
to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cs.sandeepdubey@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) 
can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by 
clicking on “Upload	Board	Resolution	/	Authority	Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” 
tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password con�idential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon �ive unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

 
3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section 
of www.evoting.nsdl.comor call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000  or send a request 
to Ms. PrajaktaPawale, executive at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certi�icate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
polytexindia@gmail.com

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 
16 digit bene�iciary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to polytexindia@gmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step	1 
(A) i.e. Login	 method	 for	 e-Voting	 and	 joining	 virtual	 meeting	 for	 Individual	
shareholders	holding	securities	in	demat	mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
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Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE	 INSTRUCTIONS	 FOR	MEMBERS	 FOR	 e-VOTING	ON	 THE	DAY	OF	 THE	AGM	ARE	AS	
UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 
AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 
facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-
voting. 

INSTRUCTIONS	FOR	MEMBERS	FOR	ATTENDING	THE	EGM/AGM	THROUGHVC/OAVM	ARE	
AS	UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through 
the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for 
Access	to	NSDL	e-Voting	system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” 
placed under “Join	meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 
VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that 
the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the 
User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
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5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their 
questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email 
id, mobile number at polytexindia@gmail.com. The same will be replied by the company 
suitably.

OTHER	INSTRUCTIONS	
36. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, �irst count the 

votes cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote E-voting and 
make within two working days of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s 
Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.

37. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 
w e b s i t e  a t  w w w. p o l y t e x i n d i a . c o m   a n d  o n  t h e  w e b s i t e  o f  N S D L  a t 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com  immediately. The Company shall simultaneously forward 
the results BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

ANNEXURE	A	TO	THE	NOTICE	OF	ANNUAL	GENERAL	MEETING	DETAILS	OF	DIRECTOR	
SEEKING	RE-APPOINTMENT/APPOINTMENT	AT	THE	FORTHCOMING	ANNUAL	GENERAL	
MEETING	

(Pursuant To the Provisions of Regulation 26(4) & 36(3) Of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard-2):

A.	 WHOLE	TIME	DIRECTOR

Name of the Director

DIN

Date of Birth (Age)

Nationality

Quali�ication

Experience/Expertise

Arvind Mulji Kariya

00216112

23-04-1965, 58 years 

Indian

Commerce Graduate 

He has more than 25 years of experience in Stock 
Market. He has comprehensive knowledge and 
insight in dealing and settlement procedures. He is 
in-charge of operations, back of�ice management and 
risk management. Also having experience in the �ield 
of Stock Broking, Commodities Broking, Insurance 
Agency, Mutual Funds Distribution. 
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EXPLANATORY	STATEMENT	PURSUANT	TO	SECTION	102(1)	OF	THE	COMPANIES	ACT,	2013	
REGARDING	SPECIAL	BUSINESS	(ES):	

ITEM	NO.	4

Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, read with relevant SEBI 
noti�ications, the Company is required to appoint a peer-reviewed practicing Company Secretary 
as Secretarial Auditor for conducting the annual secretarial audit to ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, regulations, and governance standards. It is further provided that on the basis of 
recommendation of board of directors, a listed entity shall appoint or re-appoint:

i.  an individual as Secretarial Auditor for not more than one term of �ive consecutive years; or 

ii. a Secretarial Audit �irm as Secretarial Auditor for not more than two terms of �ive 
consecutive years, with the approval of its shareholders in its Annual General Meeting:

M/s. Sandeep Dubey & Associates, Company Secretary, represented by Mr. Sandeep Dubey is a 
Practising Company Secretary with strong credentials in the �ields of SEBI regulations, corporate 
governance and legal compliance. He holds a valid Peer Review Certi�icate issued by the Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and has a track record of delivering reliable and 
compliance-oriented Secretarial Audit services to the listed companies across sectors. His 
professional approach and subject matter expertise makes them well-suited for the role of 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company. M/s Sandeep Dubey & Associated have given their consent to 
act as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and have con�irmed that the said appointment, if 
made, will be in accordance with the conditions prescribed under Sections 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Listing Regulations and have certi�ied that they have not incurred 

Date of Appointment as Director of the 
Company

Other Directorships 

Membership/Chairmanship in the 
committees of other Listed Companies

Shareholding in the Company

Relationships	between	the	Directors 
inter-se, if any

31-01-2008 

1. Rruchi Food Plaza Private Limited 

2. Rapid Credits And Mercantiles Private Limited 

3. Anugrah Holidays Private Limited 

4. Wagad Fincap Limited 

5. Anugrah Realty Developers Private Limited 

NIL

23,87,500  equity shares

Husband	of	Mrs.	Jegna	ArvindKariya,   
Director of the Company
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any of the disquali�ications as speci�ied by the Board. Based on the recommendation of the Board 
of Directors, the remuneration payable to the said Secretarial Auditor is proposed to be Rs. 
50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) for conducting Secretarial Audit of the Company for one 
Financial Year, excluding applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses. Any increment to his 
remuneration can be allowed by the Board, upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Rationale for Appointment of Secretarial Auditor:- 

The appointment of M/s. Sandeep Dubey & Associates, (Membership No. 47940, COP No. 17902) 
is based on a comprehensive evaluation by the Audit Committee and the Board, considering the 
following factors:

Peer-Reviewed	 Expertise: Holds a valid Peer Review Certi�icate issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), attesting to adherence to professional standards and 
continuous quality control. 

Experience	 in	 Corporate	 Governance: They bring substantial hands-on• experience in 
secretarial audit, SEBI compliance, and Companies Act requirements, especially for listed and 
regulated entities. 
 
Independence	and	Integrity: The proposed auditor ful�ils the independence• criteria and has 
made necessary declarations regarding absence of disquali�ication under applicable laws and 
Listing Regulations.  

Geographic	 and	 Operational	 Accessibility: Based in Mumbai, Maharashtra they have 
demonstrated capacity to serve clients across regions while maintaining ef�iciency and timely 
reporting.

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 (5) OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS, 2015 IN 
RESPECT OF M/S. SANDEEP DUBEY & ASSOCIATES, (Membership No. 47940, COP No. 17902), 
PEER REVIEW CERT NO. 3179/2023), WHO ARE PROPOSED TO BE APPOINTED AS THE 
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY FOR A TERM OF 5 YEARS

Proposed fees payable to the Secretarial 
auditor

Terms of appointment

Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand Only) per 
annum The proposed fees payable to the 
Secretarial Auditor is based on knowledge, 
expertise, experience, time and effort required to 
be put in by him

For a period of 5 consecutive years commencing 
from the conclusion of ensuing 39th AGM till the 
conclusion of the 44th AGM of the Company to be 
held in the year 2030
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Any material change in the fee payable to 
such auditor from that paid to the 
outgoing auditor  along with the 
rationale for such change

B a s i s  o f  r e c o m m e n d a t i o n  f o r 
appointment

Details in relation to and credentials of 
the Secretarial auditor(s) proposed to be 
appointed

Not applicable as the existing Secretarial Auditor 
is proposed to be re-appointed for a term of 5 
consecutive years in compliance with the 
provisions of  Regulation 24A of  List ing 
Regulations,  as  amended (“SEBI  List ing 
Regulations”) and Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014

The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the 
Board’), recommended for the approval of the 
Members, the appointment of M/s. Sandeep 
Dubey & Associates, (Membership No. 47940, COP 
No. 17902)  as Secretarial Auditor of the Company, 
pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of 
Listing Regulations, as amended (“SEBI Listing 
Regulations”) and Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 
The Board considered various parameters like 
Firm’s peer-reviewed expertise, substantial 
e x p e r i e n c e  i n  c o r p o r a t e  g o v e r n a n c e , 
independence and integrity, and geographic and 
operational accessibility. Their appointment 
supports the Company's commitment to robust 
governance, regulatory transparency, and high 
professional standards.

M/s. Sandeep Dubey & Associates, (Membership 
No. 47940, COP No. 17902)  Peer Reviewed 
Practicing Company Secretary has an extensive 
experience and proven pro�iciency in all aspects of 
company law, SEBI regulations, and various other 
business laws, CS Sandeep dubey excels in 
compliance management, including statutory 
reporting and meeting other regulatory 
requirements. The �irm came into existence on 
January, 2017 and has 3 Partner and 2 number of 
employees. The �irm has presence in Mumbai and 
has good working experience and pro�iciency in 
all matters related to compliance management 
with respect to statutory reporting and other 
statutory requirements.
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ITEM	NO.	5
In terms of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 all material related party transactions requires 
prior approval of the Members of the Company by means of an Ordinary Resolution, even if such 
transaction(s) are in the ordinary course of business and at an arm’s length pricing basis. A 
transaction with a related party shall be considered material if the transaction / transactions to 
be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a �inancial year, 
exceeds ten percent (10%) of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last 
audited �inancial statements of the Company.

In terms of Sub Clause (4) of Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as the transaction is material in nature and is likely to exceed 
10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the audited �inancial statements 
of the Company as on 31 March 2025 therefore it require approval of the shareholders through 
resolution.

Also As per the provisions of Section 180(1)© of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors 
of a company can borrow monies in excess of the aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free 
reserves and securities premium of the Company only with the prior approval of the 
shareholders by way of a special resolution.

The present borrowing powers of the Company are inadequate considering the proposed 
�inancial requirements. It is therefore proposed to authorize the Board of Directors to borrow 
monies exceeding the limits prescribed under Section 180(1)© of the Companies Act, 2013, 
subject to the maximum borrowing limit of Rs. 5,00,00,000/-

In view of the above, Resolution Nos. 5, is placed for approval by the Members of the Company.

The Management has provided the Audit Committee of the Company with relevant details of the 
proposed RPT, including material terms and basis of pricing. The Audit Committee (including the 
Independent Directors), after reviewing all necessary information, has granted its approval for 
entering into the below mentioned material related party transaction, subject to approval by the 
Members at the AGM. The Audit Committee has noted that the said transaction(s) will be at an 
arm’s length pricing basis and will be in the ordinary course of business.

The particulars of the material related party transactions, which are required to be stated in the 
Explanatory Statement, as per Industry Standards on “Minimum information to be provided to 
the Shareholders for approval of Related Party  Transactions”, SEBI Master Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated 11 November 2024 and Rule 15(3) of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as follows:
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Description

Basic	details	of	the	related	party

(a) Name of the related party 

(b) Country of incorporation of the related 
party India

(c) Nature of business of the related party 

Relationship	and	ownership	of	the	
related	party

(a) Relationship with the Company, 
including nature of its concern or interest 
(�inancial or otherwise)

• Shareholding of the Company whether 
direct or indirect, in the related party.

• Where the related party is a partnership 
�irm or a sole proprietorship concern or a 
body corporate without share capital, then 
capital contribution, if any, made by the 
Company

• Shareholding of the related party, whether 
direct orindirect, in the Company.

Details	of	previous	transactions	with	the	
related	party

(a) Total amount of all the transactions 
undertaken by the Company with the 
related party during the last �inancial year.

(b) Total amount of all the transactions 
undertaken by the Company with the 
related party in the current �inancial year 
upto the quarter immediately preceding the 
quarter in which the approval is sought.

Details	of	the	related	party	
transaction

Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya

Related Party is Individual so this 
Information cannot be provided

Related Party is Individual so this 
Information cannot be provided

Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya is Director 
and CFO of the Company

Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya hold 
17.69% of shares the Company

In 2024-25 Loan given by Arvind 
Mulji Kariya is Rs. 22,37,955 

Rs. 45,000/-

Sr.	No

1.

2.

3.

Sr.	No.		 Description	 	 	 	 	 			Details	of	the	related	party
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 			transaction

Summary	of	information	provided	by	the	Management	to	the	Audit	Committee	for	
approval	of	the	proposed	RPT
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(c) Any default, if any, made by a related 
party concerning any obligation undertaken 
by it under a transaction or arrangement 
entered into with the Company during the 
last �inancial year.

Amount	of	the	proposed	transaction(s)

(a) Amount of the proposed transactions 
being placed for approval in the meeting of 
the Audit Committee and shareholders.

(b) Whether the proposed transactions 
taken together with the transactions 
undertaken with the related party during 
the current �inancial year would render the 
proposed transaction a material RPT?

c) Value of the proposed transactions as a 
percentage of the listed entity’s annual 
consolidated turnover for the immediately 
preceding �inancial year

(d) Value of the proposed transactions as a 
percentage of the related party’s annual 
consolidated turnover (if consolidated 
turnover is not available, calculation to be 
made on standalone turnover of related 
party) for the immediately preceding 
�inancial year, if available.

(e) Financial performance of the related 
party for the immediately preceding 
�inancial year:

Basic	details	of	the	proposed	transaction

(a) Speci�ic type of the proposed transaction

(b) Tenure of the proposed transaction 
(particular tenure in years or months shall 
be speci�ied)

(c) Whether omnibus approval is being 
sought?

(d) Value of the proposed transaction 
during a �inancial year

No such defaults occurred during 
the last �inancial

year.

Rs. 5 Crore

Yes

Since the Company has NIL 
turnover so this information 
cannot be provided

Since the Company has NIL 
turnover so this information 
cannot be provided

Related Party is individual so this 
information cannot be provided

Interest free Loan given by the 
Director of the Company to 
Company

Repayable on demand made by 
the Director as and when required

No

Total to the extend of Rs. 5 Crore

4.

5.
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If the proposed transaction will be executed 
over more than one �inancial year, provide 
estimated break-up �inancial year wise.

(e) Justi�ication for the proposed RPT 

(f) Details of the promoter(s)/ director(s) / 
key managerial personnel of the Company 
who have interest in the transaction, 
whether directly or indirectly:

(g) A copy of the valuation or other external 
party report, if any such report has been 
relied upon

Value of the proposed transaction 
(monetary value)

The percentage of the Company’s annual 
consolidated turnover, for the immediately 
preceding �inancial year, that is represented 
by the value of the proposed transaction

Percentage of the counter-party’s annual 
consolidated turnover that is represented 
by the value of the proposed RPT on a 
voluntary basis

Source of funds in connection with the 
proposed transaction

Where any �inancial indebtedness is 
incurred to give loan

Rate of interest at which the Company is 
borrowing from its bankers/other lenders.

Note: Disclosure shall be made of 
borrowings undertaken by the Company 
with a comparable maturity pro�ile to the 
loan/ICD being granted by the listed entity.

Proposed interest rate to be charged by the 
Company from the related party

Since the Company is having NIL 
turnover so the Company 
requested the Director o give 
Loan for running the Company 
and meeting day to day 
transaction 

Mrs. Jegna Arvind Kariya Director 
of the Company is the wife of the 
Mr. Arvind Muli Kariya.

NA

Loan up to 5 Crores (Rupees Five 
Crores Only) given through one or 
more tranches

Company is having NIL turnover

Company is having NIL turnover

Surplus available with the 
Director

NIL

NIL

NIL

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.
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Maturity / due date

Repayment schedule & terms

Whether secured or unsecured?

If secured, the nature of security & security 
coverage ratio

The purpose for which the funds will be 
utilised by the ultimate bene�iciary of such 
funds pursuant to the transaction

Latest credit rating of the related party

Note: Standalone rating to be provided 
while option to provide structured 
obligation rating (SO rating) and credit 
enhancement rating (CE rating), if any

Default on borrowings, if any, over the last 
three �inancial years, by the related party 
from the listed entity or any other person 
and value of subsisting default.

Note: This information may be provided to 
the extent it is available in the public 
domain or as may be provided by the 
related party upon request.

In addition, state the following:

a. Whether the account of the related party 
has been classi�ied asa non-performing 
asset (NPA) by any of its bankers and 
whethersuch status is currently subsisting;

b. Whether the related party has been 
declared a “wilful defaulter”by any of its 
bankers and whether such status is 
currently subsisting;

c. Whether the related party is undergoing 
or facing any application for 
commencement of an insolvency resolution 
process or liquidation;

On demand 

On demand

Unsecured

NA

The funds will be utilised by the 
Company for meeting day to day 
expenses.

NA

There is no such default

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.
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d. Whether the related party, not being an 
MSME, suffers from any of the 
disquali�ications speci�ied under Section 
29A of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016.

Note: Past defaults that are no longer 
subsisting and have been cured or 
regularised need not be disclosed.

Any other information that may be relevant20.

By orders of the Board of Directors
For	Polytex	India	Limited

      sd/-
Anju	Surajsingh	Chauhan
Company Secretary

REGISTERED	OFFICE:
5th Floor, 5b, Technopolis Knowledge Parkmahakali Caves Road, 
NrUdyog Bhavan Chakala Andheri East, ChakalaMIDC, 
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400093

Date:	03.09.2025
Place:	Mumbai
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Directors'	Report

To,           
The Members
Polytex India Limited 
Mumbai

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 39th Annual Report with the Audited Accounts 
for the year ended 31st March, 2025

1.	 	Financial	Results
During the year under review, the Company has NIL income (PY also NIL) and net loss of Rs. 10.65 
Lakhs (PY Rs. 16.13 Lakhs)

(�igures in lakhs)

Particulars

Income From Operation

Other Income

Total Income

Pro�it Before Depreciation and Tax

Depreciation

Pro�it before Tax

Tax Expense

Pro�it after Tax

For	the	year	ended	
31st	March,	2025

-

-

-

(10.76)

-

(10.76)

0.11

(10.65)

For	the	year	ended	
31st	March,	2024

-

-

-

(16.11)

-

(16.11)

0.03

(16.13)

*Previous year's �igures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary

2.	 Operations	of	the	Company
The overall performance during the year under review has not been quite satisfactory due to 
recession in the overall market. The company is deploying its resources in the best possible way 
to increase business volumes and plans to achieve increased turnover in the current year.

3.	 Dividend
Considering the need to conserve resources for future projects, your Directors have not 
recommended any dividend for the �inancial year ended 31st March, 2025

4.	 Share	Capital
During the year under review, there was no change in the Share Capital structure and the paid up 
capital of the Company.
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5. Material changes and commitment affecting the �inancial position of the company occurred 
between the end of the �inancial year to which this �inancial statements relate and the date of the 
report

There are no signi�icant material changes and commitments affecting the �inancial position of the 
company that occurred between the end of �inancial year and the date of this report.

6.	 Public	Deposits
The Company has not accepted any �ixed deposits from public, or its employee during the year.

7.	 Particulars	of	Loans,	Guarantees	or	 Investments	Made	Under	Section	186	of	The	
Companies	Act,	2013:

The particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review are disclosed under the respective 
Schedules/Notes in the Financial Statements.

8.	 Disclosure	under	Rule	2(1)(c)(viii)	of	the	Companies	(Acceptance	of	Deposits)	Rules,	
2014
During the �inancial year under review, the Company has accepted unsecured loans (exempted 
deposit) of Rs. 22,37,955/-  from Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya, Director (DIN: 00216112) of the 
Company for which the Company has also received a declaration in writing from him in 
accordance with the provisions of rule 2(1)(c )(viii) of the Companies( Acceptance of Deposits) 
rules, 2014. 

9.	 Particulars	of	Contracts	or	arrangements	with	related	parties
All related party transaction entered into during the �inancial year were on arm’s length basis and 
were in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially signi�icant related party 
transactions made by the company with related parties which may have potential con�lict with 
interest of the company at large. The particulars of such contract or arrangements entered into 
by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 
companies Act, 2013 are attached herewith in Annexure I in Form No. AOC – 2.

All related party transactions are approved by the Audit Committee. Prior omnibus approval is 
obtained from the Audit Committee in respect of the transactions which are repetitive in nature. 
The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted are reviewed on a 
quarterly basis by the audit committee.

The Policy of Related Party transaction / Disclosures are approved by the Board is posted on the 
Company’s website vizwww.polytexindia.com.

10.	 Number	of	meeting	of	Board	of	Directors
The Board of Directors of the Company met Six (6) times   during   year   2024-25 on 15.04.2024, 
30.05.2024, 29.06.2024, 13.08.2024, 14.11.2024 and 30.01.2025. The details of various Board 
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Meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report that forms part of this Annual Report. 
The gap intervening between two meetings of the board is as prescribed in the Companies Act, 
2013.

Additionally, during the �inancial year ended March 31, 2025 the Independent Director held a 
separate meeting on 30.01.2025 in compliance with the requirements of Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. All the Three Independent Directors have attended the meeting.

11.	 Directors	and	Key	Managerial	Personnel
Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr.  Arvind Mulji Kariya (DIN: 00216112), 
Director of the Company, retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The details of Director being recommended for 
reappointment as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 are contained in the accompanying Notice convening the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting of the company.

Mrs. Ankita Gupta Company Secretary and Compliance Of�icer of the Company resigned wef 
01.04.2024 and Mrs. Anju Surajsingh Chauhan was appointed as Company Secretary and 
Compliance Of�icer of the Company wef 29.06.2024.

Directors	and	KMP	as	on	31.03.2025	are	as	follows:

  Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya  : Whole TimeDirector and CFO 

 Mrs. Jegna Arvind Kariya  : Director 

 Mr. Kapil Purohit   : Independent Director 

 Mrs. Deepa Jayramdas Lakhwani : Independent Director 

 Mrs. Heena Gurmukhdas Kukreja : Independent Director 

    Mrs. Anju Surajsingh Chauhan : Company Secretary

12.	 Declaration	of	Independent	Directors
The Company has received necessary declaration form the each Independent Directors under 
section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/ she meets the criteria for independence as 
laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

13.	 Directors’	Responsibility	Statement
In compliance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors hereby 
con�irms the following:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and that there were no material departures therefrom; 

(ii) they have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the joint statutory auditors 
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and have applied their recommendations consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
as at 31 March, 2025 and of the pro�it of the company for the year ended on that date; 

(iii) they have taken proper and suf�icient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the 
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) they have laid down internal �inancial controls to be followed by the company and that such 
internal �inancial controls are adequate and were operating effectively during the year ended 31 
March, 2025; and 

(vi) proper system has been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively during the year ended 31 
March, 2025.

14.	 Board	Evaluation
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and under regulation 25 of the SEBI 
(Listing obligations and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out 
an evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the 
working of its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration Committees.

In line with effective governance requirements, the Board reviews its own performance annually 
using a pre – determined template designed as a tool to facilitate the evaluation process. The 
assessment was built around the functioning of the Board as a whole its committees and also the 
evaluation of Individual Directors. While the individual Directors’ Performance was reviewed by 
the Chairman and the rest of the Board excluding the Director being evaluated, the Chairman’s 
and Non – Independent Directors performance was appraised through feedback from 
Independent Directors.

15.	 Policy	relating	to	remuneration	of	Directors,	Key	Managerial	Personnel	and	other	
Employees
The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, framed 
and adopted the policy for selection and appointment of Directors, senior management and their 
remuneration. The Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report which 
forms part of this Report. The policy lays down criteria for selection of directors and senior 
management such as expertise, experience and integrity of the directors, Independent nature of 
the Directors, personal and professional standing, diversity of the Board etc.

As on 31.03.2025, the NRC comprises of the following members:

Mrs. Deepa JayramdasLakhawani  – Chairperson 

Mr. Kapil Purohit    – Member 

Mrs. HeenaGurmukhdasKukreja  – Member
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During the year, the committee met 3 times in the year on 15.04.2024, 29.06.2024 and 
13.08.2024 all Committee members had attended all the meeting in their tenure.

16.	 Stakeholders	Relationship	Committees
As on 31.03.2025, the Company has Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprising of the 
following three Non-Executive and Independent Directors:

Mrs. Deepa JayramdasLakhawani  – Chairperson 

Mr. Kapil Purohit    – Member 

Mrs. HeenaGurmukhdasKukreja  – Member

The functions performed by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the particulars of 
meetings held and attendance are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the committee met 1 time in the year on 30.05.2024 all Committee members had 
attended all the meeting in their tenure.

17.	 Statutory	Auditors
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 M/s. Agrawal Jain and Gupta, Chartered Accountants (FRN.: 
013538C)was appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Annual General 
Meeting held on 30th September, 2020 to hold of�ice upto the conclusion of the Thirty nine (39th) 
Annual General Meeting subject to the rati�ication at every Annual General Meeting and are 
eligible for re-appointment

During the coming AGM it is proposed to appoint M/s. Agrawal Jain and Gupta, Chartered 
Accountants (FRN.: 013538C) for next two consecutive �inancial year.

18.	 Auditors	Report
There were no quali�ications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their 
Report. The comments by the auditors in their Report read along within formation and 
explanation given in Notes to Accounts are self explanatory and do not call for further 
explanation.

19.	 COST	RECORD	AND	COST	AUDIT	
Maintenance of cost records and requirements of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of 
section 148(1) of the Act is not applicable for the business activities carried out by the company.

20.	 Details	of	Fraud	Reported	By	Auditors
There were no frauds which are reported to have been committed by employees or of�icers of the 
Company. The statutory auditors of the Company have vide their report of even date con�irmed 
that no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the year.
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21.	 Secretarial	Auditors
M/s. Sandeep Dubey& Associates was appointed to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company 
for FY 2024-25, as required under section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder. 
The secretarial audit report for FY 2024-25 forms the part of the annual report as Annexure II of 
the Board’s report.

Clari�ication on Observations of Secretarial Auditor: 

S.	No.

1

2

3

4

Observation

Delay in Quarterly/event based Complainces and

Certi�icate of Registration bearing no. 13.00039 
dated 20th February, 1998 issued by Reserve 
Bank of India to carry on the business of Non-
Banking Financial Institution stands cancelled. 
Reserve Bank of India has exercised its power 
under section 45-IA (6) of Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934 and has cancelled our Certi�icate of 
Registration to carry on the business of Non-
Banking Financial Institution by order dated 18th 
June, 2024.  (Order no CO.DoS.SED. No. S2077/13-
05-101/2024-2025)

Trading of the company is suspended due to 
non–payment of Annual Listing fees of BSE

Website of the Company is not updated

Clari�ication

We got the data as required from 
RTA delayed because of late of 
payment of RTA fee. 

Self explanatory

Company is in the process of 
arranging funds for making the 
payment of BSE Listing fee

Company is in the process of 
updating the same 

22.	 Audit	Committee 

Mrs. Deepa Jayramdas Lakhawani   – Chairperson 

Mr. Kapil Purohit     – Member 

Mrs. Heena Gurmukhdas Kukreja   – Member

During the year, the committee met Four times in the year on  30.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 
14.11.2024 and 30.01.2025  all Committee members had attended all the meeting in their 
tenure.

During the year under review, the Board has accepted all the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee.

POLYTEX INDIA LTD                                                                            Annual Report 2024-25

31



The functions performed by the Audit Committee and the particulars of meetings held and 
attendance there at are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

23.	 Internal	Financial	Control
The Internal Financial Controls with reference to �inancial statements as designed and 
implemented by the Company are adequate. Further Directors are personally overview the 
adequacy of internal controls.

During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been received from the 
Internal Auditors of the Company for inef�iciency or inadequacy of such controls.

24.	 Internal	Control	System	and	their	Adequacy	
Your Company maintains adequate internal control system and procedure commensurate with 
its size and nature of operations. The internal control system are designated to provide a 
reasonable assurance over reliability in �inancial reporting, ensure appropriate authorization of 
transaction , safeguarding the assets of the Company and prevent misuse/losses and legal 
compliance. The internal control system includes a well-de�ined delegation of authority and a 
comprehensive Management Information System coupled with quarterly reviews of operational 
and �inancial performance, a well-structured budgeting process and Internal Audit. The Internal 
Audit reports are periodically reviewed by the management and the Audit Committee and 
necessary improvements are undertaken, if required.

25.	 Code	of	Conduct	for	Prevention	of	Insider	Trading:
The Board of Directors has adopted the Insider Trading Policy in accordance with the 
requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015. The Insider Trading 
Policy of the Company lays down the guidelines and procedure to be followed and disclosures to 
be made while dealing with the shares of the Company. The policy has been formulated to 
regulate, monitor, and ensure reporting of dealings by employees. The Insider Trading Policy of 
the Company covering code of practices and procedures for fair disclosures of unpublished price 
sensitive information and code of conduct for prevention of insider trading is available on the 
website of the Company.

26.	 Listing	Fees:	
The Equity Shares of the Company is listed on BSE Limited and the Company has not paid the 
applicable listing fees to the Stock Exchange due to shortage of funds and the same is in process to 
be paid.

27.	 RBI	Guidelines:
Certi�icate of Registration bearing no. 13.00039 dated 20th February, 1998 issued by Reserve 
Bank of India to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution stands cancelled. 
Reserve Bank of India has exercised its power under section 45-IA (6) of Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934 and has cancelled our Certi�icate of Registration to carry on the business of Non-
Banking Financial Institution by order dated 18th June, 2024.  (Order no CO.DoS.SED. No. 
S2077/13-05-101/2024-2025)
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28.	 Vigil	Mechanism	for	Directors	and	Employee
In Compliance with the provisions of Section 179(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read has 
adopted a Whistle Blower Policy as a vigil mechanism for directors and employees of the 
Company.  The Whistle Blower Policy is  disclosed on the Company’s website 
www.polytexindia.com.

29.	 Risk	Management	Framework
Pursuant to SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has prepared Risk Management Framework 
for identifying and evaluating various major business risks faced by the Company. Risk 
Management Framework aims to lay down the procedure for risk assessment and risk 
minimization. Risk Management Framework is prepared to ensure internal controls and 
effectively respond to any changes in the business environment so as to achieve high degree of 
business performance, limit any negative impact on its working and avail of bene�its arising out 
of any business opportunities.

The audit committee has additional oversight in the area of �inancial risks and controls.

30.	 Familiarization	Programme	for	Independent	Director.
Regulation 25(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 mandates the Company to familiarize the 
Independent Directors with the Company by conducting training programmes. During the year, 
the Board members were regularly apprised with the overview of the Company and its 
operations by the Senior Management team.

During the year, the Board Members are provided with all necessary documents/ reports and 
internal policies to enable them to familiarize with the Company’s procedures and practices and 
keep   themselves   abreast   of   the   latest corporate, regulatory and Industry developments

31.	 Details	 of	 signi�icant	 and	material	 orders	 passed	 by	 the	 regulators	 or	 courts	 or	
tribunals	impacting	the	going	concern	status	and	company’s	operations	in	future
During the  Financial Year 2024-25, the Reserve Bank of India in exercise of its power under 
section 45-IA (6) (iv) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 cancelled the Certi�icate of Registration 
bearing no. 13.00039 dated 20th February, 1998 issued by Reserve Bank of India to carry on the 
business of Non-Banking Financial Institution on 12th June, 2024 

32.	 Subsidiaries,	Joint	Ventures	and	Associate	Companies
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate company. Hence, 
disclosure of statement containing salient features of the Financial Statements of 
Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures in Form AOC-1 is not applicable to the 
Company.

33.	 Change	in	the	Nature	of	Business
There has been no change in the nature of Business during the year under review.
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34.	 Particulars	of	Employees
Information on particulars of employees’ remuneration as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is reported to be nil as there are no employees who are in receipt of 
remuneration above the prescribed limit.

The Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other 
details in terms of Sub – Section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are 
forming part of this Report as Annexure III

35.	 Annual	Return
Pursuant to section 134(3)(a) and section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a copy of the annual return is 
placed on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.polytexindia.com

36.	 Transfer	of	Unclaimed	Dividend	to	Investor	Education	and	Protection	fund
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, dividend which 
remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of its transfer to unpaid 
dividend account is required to be transferred by the Company to Investors Education and 
Protection Fund established by the central government under the provisions of section 125 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

37.	 Corporate	Governance
We strive to maintain high standard of Corporate Governance in all our interactions with 
stakeholders. The Company has conformed to the Corporate Governance code as stipulated 
under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. A 
separate section on Corporate Governance along with a certi�icate from the auditors con�irming 
the level of compliance is attached and forms a part of the Board’s Report

38.	 Management	Discussion	and	Analysis	Report
Management Discussion and Analysis forms a part of this annual report and is annexed to the 
Board’s Report.

39.	 Conservation	 of	 Energy,	 Technology	 Absorption,	 Foreign	 Exchange	 Earnings	 and	
Outgo
Your Company is not an energy intensive unit, however possibilities are continuously explored to 
conserve energy and to reduce energy consumption to the extent possible. During the year under 
review, considering the nature of activities presently being carried on by the Company, 
categorical information of the Company in terms of the Rules is provided below:
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(B)	 Technologyabsorption:
The activities and business of the Company are such that it does not involve use of ultra modern 
technologies and hence the disclosure under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

(C)	 Foreign	Exchange	Earning	and	Outgo:
During the year under review Company did not earn any foreign exchange and there is no foreign 
exchange outgo.

40.	 Disclosure	 as	 per	 the	 sexual	 harassment	 of	 women	 at	 workplace	 (Prevention,	
Prohibition	and	redressal)	act,	2013
The Company has in place a prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement 
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013

There were no Complaints received and disposed off during the �inancial year 2024-25.

41.	 Information	under	Regulation	34	(3)	read	with	Schedule	V	of	Securities	and	Exchange	
Board	of	India	(Listing	Obligation	and	Disclosure	Requirements)	Regulation,	2015:
There are no shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account.

42.	 Secretarial	Standards	
The Company complies with the Secretarial Standards, issued by the Institute of Company 

(A)	Conservation	
of	energy:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Steps taken or impact on 
conservation of energy

Steps taken by the 
company for utilizing 
alternate sources of 
energy

Capital Investment on 
energy conservation 
equipments;

Regular efforts are made to conserve the 
energy at all levels. Several environment 
friendly measures were adopted by the 
Company such as Installation of capacitors 
to  save power,  Instal led Thin Fi lm 
Transistor(TFT) monitors that saves power, 
LED Lights,  Creating environmental 
awareness by way of distributing the 
information in electronic form, Minimising 
air-conditioning usage, Shutting off all the 
lights when not in use etc.

The Company is into Service Industry and 
hence except Electricity, the Company is not 
required to use any other alternate source of 
energy.

NIL
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Secretaries of India, which are mandatorily applicable to the Company. The same has also been 
con�irmed by Secretarial Auditors of the Company in the Secretarial audit Report.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Board and General Meetings 

The company has complied with all the provisions of secretarial standards issued by the Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India in respect of meetings of the board of directors and general 
meetings held during the year.

43.	 CEO	/	CFO	Certi�ication:	
In accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 pertaining to Corporate Governance norms, Mr. Arvind MuljiKariya, (DIN: 
00216112) Director and Chief Financial Of�icer has certi�ied, inter-alia, on review of �inancial 
statements and establishing and maintaining internal controls for the �inancial year ended 
31.03.2025.

44.	 The	details	of	application	made	or	any	proceeding	pending	under	the	Insolvency	and	
Bankruptcy	Code,	2016	during	the	year	along	with	their	status	as	at	the	end	of	the	�inancial	
year.
During the year under review, there were no application made or proceeding pending in the 
name of the Company under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

45.	 The	details	of	the	difference	between	the	amount	of	the	valuation	done	at	the	time	of	
one-time	 settlement	 and	 the	 valuation	 done	 while	 taking	 a	 loan	 from	 the	 Banks	 or	
Financial	Institutions	along	with	the	reasons	thereof.
During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of Loans taken Banks and 
Financial Institutions.

46.	 Compliance	 with	 provisions	 relating	 to	 the	 constitution	 of	 internal	 complaints	
committee	 under	 the	 Sexual	 Harassment	 Of	 Women	 At	 Workplace	 (Prevention,	
Prohibition	And	Redressal)	Act,	2013:
During the year under review, the Company had no employees on its rolls except employees on 
payroll of the Company except the Company Secretary, CFO and the Directors .

47.	 MATERNITY	BENEFIT:
The Company is in compliance with the provisions of the Maternity Bene�it Act, 1961, to the 
extent applicable. However, as on the date of this report, the Company does not have any 
employees on its payroll except employees on payroll of the Company except the Company 
Secretary, CFO and the Directors .

48.	 Acknowledgement
Your Directors take this opportunity to express the gratitude to all investors, clients, vendors, 
bankers, Regulatory and Government authorities, Stock Exchanges and business associates for 
their cooperation, encouragement and continued support extended to the Company. Your 
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Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation to the Associates for their continuing 
support and unstinting efforts in ensuring an excellent all round operational performance at all 
levels.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Polytex	India	Limited

    sd/-      sd/-
Arvind	Mulji	Kariya		 	 	 Jigna	Arvind	Kariya
Director&	CFO	 	 	 	 Director
DIN:	00216112	 	 	 	 DIN:	02376901

Date:	03.09.2025
Place:	Mumbai
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Name (s) of the related party & 
nature of relationship

Nature of contracts / arrangements / 
transactions

Duration of the contracts / 
arrangements / transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any

Date(s) of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Anju Surajsingh 
Chauhan, Company 
Secretary

Salary

On Going

Salary,
Rs. 1,35,000

13.08.2022

NIL

Arvind MuljiKariya
Director & CFO

Loan from Director

On Going

Loan taken from Mr. 
Arvind MuljiKariya

Rs, 22,37,955/-

10.11.2021

NIL

Annexure	I

Form	AOC	–	2

(Pursuant to clause(h) of sub-section(3) of section 134 of the Act, and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arms length transactions under third provision there to

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 
31st March, 2025, which were not arm’s length basis.

2. Details material contractor arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
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Annexure	III	to	the	Directors’	Report

SECRETARIAL	AUDIT	REPORT

FORM	NO.	MR	–	3

FOR	THE	FINANCIAL	YEAR	ENDED	31STMARCH,	2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel Rule, 2014]

To,
The Members,
POLYTEX	INDIA	LTD
(CIN: L51900MH1987PLC042092)
5th Floor, 5b, Technopolis Knowledge Parkmahakali Caves Road, 
NrUdyog Bhavan Chakala Andheri East, Chakala, MIDC, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, India, 400093

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the Compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. POLYTEX INDIA LTD having CIN: 
L51900MH1987PLC042092 (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conduct/Statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my veri�ication of the POLYTEX INDIA LTD books, papers, minute books, form and 
returns �iled and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by 
the Company, its of�icers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
Secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the Financial year ended March 31, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, form and returns �iled and other records 
maintained by the Company for the �inancial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the 
provisions of: -

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;

(3) The Depository Act,1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

(4) Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;

(5) The following Regulation and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
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Board of India Act 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009; Not	applicable	to	the	Company	during	the	Audit	period.

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; Not	applicable	to	the	Company	during	the	
Audit	period.

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; -Not	applicable	to	the	Company	during	the	Audit	period.

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registration to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulation, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 
- Not	applicable	to	the	Company	during	the	Audit	period.

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; - 
Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period.

(6) The Factories Act, 1948 and Industrial law applicable to the Company: - Not applicable to 
the Company during the Audit period.

I have also examined Compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, with respect 
to Board (“SS-1”) and General Meetings (“SS-2”) 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange(s) if 
applicable.

Constitution	of	Committees;

We observed that the company has properly constituted three committee namely Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee. 

Section	135	-	Corporate	Social	Responsibility	Committee:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is not required to be constituted as per the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Section	173	-	Board	meetings:

The company has complied with the provisions of the Section 173 of the Act and as well complied 
with SEBI LODR, 2015. The company has conducted 6 Board meetings as mentioned below.
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Sr.	No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

Date

15.04.2024

30.05.2024

29.06.2024

13.08.2024

14.11.2024

30.01.2025

Audit	
Committee

Date

30.05.2024

13.08.2024

14.11.2024

30.01.2025

Nomination	and	
Remuneration	
Committee

Date

15.04.2024

29.06.2024

13.08.2024

Stakeholders	
Committee

Date

30.05.2024

Board	Meeting

An Independent Director Meeting was held on 30.01.2025.

Non-Compliances/delay	 in	 compliances	 under	 SEBI	 (Listing	 Obligation	 and	 Disclosure	
Requirement)	Regulations,	2015	and	other	Corporate	Laws:

During the period under review, the Company has the following non-compliances/delay in 
compliances of the Regulation of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015.

i. Regulation 7(3)- Compliance certi�icate certifying the maintenance of physical and 
electronic transfer facility (to be submitted within one month from the end of the �inancial year).

Period	 Date	of	Submission	with	BSE	 Delay/Non-compliances

April 24-March 25 26.04.2024 No

ii.      Regulation 13(3)- Statement of Investor Complaints (to be submitted within 21 days from 
the quarter end).

Quarter	 Date	of	Submission	with	BSE	 Delay/Non-compliances

Apr-Jun 2024 14.04.2024 No

Jul-Sep 2024 19.07.2024 Yes

Oct-Dec 2024 20.10.2024 No

Jan-Mar 2025 19.01.2025 No
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iii.    Regulation 21 – Risk Management Committee not applicable to the Company during the 
period under review.

iv.      Regulation 27(2) – Corporate Governance (to be submitted within 21 days from the quarter 
end).

Quarter	 Date	of	Submission	with	BSE	 Delay/Non-compliances

Apr-Jun 2024 21.04.2024 No

Jul-Sep 2024 21.07.2024 No

Oct-Dec 2024 20.10.2024 No

Jan-Mar 2025 19.01.2025 No

v.     Regulation 31 – Shareholding Pattern (to be submitted within 21 days from quarter end).

Quarter	 Date	of	Submission	with	BSE	 Delay/Non-compliances

Apr-Jun 2024 20.04.2024 No

Jul-Sep 2024 28.08.2024 Yes

Oct-Dec 2024 20.10.2024 No

Jan-Mar 2025 19.01.2025 No

vi.     Regulation 33 – Financial Results (to be submitted within 45 days from the quarter end 
and in case of the Annual Financial Result within 60 days from the end of �inancial year).

Quarter	 Date	of	Submission	with	BSE	 Delay/Non-compliances

Apr-Jun 2024 30.05.2024 No

Jul-Sep 2024 13.08.2024 No

Oct-Dec 2024 14.11.2024 No

Jan-Mar 2025
Annual Financial Result 30.01.2025 No

Non-compliances/delay in Compliances under Securities and Exchange Board (Depositaries 
Participants) Regulations, 1996; 

vii.     Regulation 76 of Securities and Exchange Board (Depositaries Participants) Regulations, 
2018 (Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report to be submitted within 30 days from 
quarter end);

Quarter	 Submission	with	BSE	 Delay/Non-compliances

Apr-Jun 2024 30.04.2025 No

Jul-Sep 2024 28.08.2024 Yes

Oct-Dec 2024 29.10.2024 No

Jan-Mar 2025 22.01.2025 No
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Non-compliances/delay in compliance under Securities and Exchange Board (Depositaries 
Participants) Regulations, 2018.

viii.   Compliance certi�icate under Regulation 74(5) Securities and Exchange Board 
(Depositaries Participants) Regulations, 2018 (quarterly compliance within 15 days from end of 
quarter)

Quarter	 Submission	with	BSE	 Delay/Non-compliances

Apr-Jun 2024 15.04.2024 No

Jul-Sep 2024 31.08.2024 Yes

Oct-Dec 2024 15.10.2024 No

Jan-Mar 2025 15.01.2025 No

Non-compliances/delay	 in	 Compliances	 under	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	
(Depositaries	Participants)	Regulations,	2018.

Submission of Annual Report under Regulation 34 Securities and Exchange Board (Depositaries 
Participants) Regulations, 2018 - Delay in submission of Annual Report to Stock Exchange (delay 
by 1 day).

Non-compliances/delay	in	Compliances	under	RBI	Act	1934	and	rule	made	therein;

Certi�icate of Registration bearing no. 13.00039 dated 20th February, 1998 issued by Reserve 
Bank of India to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution stands cancelled. 
Reserve Bank of India has exercised its power under section 45-IA (6) of Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934 and has cancelled our Certi�icate of Registration to carry on the business of Non-
Banking Financial Institution by order dated 18th June, 2024.  (Order no CO.DoS.SED. No. 
S2077/13-05-101/2024-2025)

Compliance	of	Secretarial	standards	in	accordance	with	section	118	(10)	of	Companies	
Act,	2013.

a. During the period under review the company has complied with the requirements of 
Secretarial Standard I with respect to the Board meetings for preparation of notice, agenda, notes 
on agenda, and preparation of minutes.

b. During the period under review the Company has complied with the requirements of 
Secretarial Standard II with respect to the Annual General meetings for the preparation of 
notices, agenda, explanatory statements.

I further report that Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, 
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clari�ications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

POLYTEX INDIA LTD                                                                            Annual Report 2024-25

43



As per minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions were 
unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

I further report that during the audit period there were no speci�ic events/actions in pursuance 
of the above laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc., having a major bearing on the Company's 
affairs.   

We further report that during the audit period the company has not indulged in any matter 
related to the following:

a. Public/ Right/ Preferential/ Debentures/ Sweat equity issue etc.
b.  Redemption / Buy-back of securities.
c. Major decisions are taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies 

Act 2013
d. Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction, etc.
e. Foreign technical collaborations.

Trading of the company is suspended due to non–payment of Annual Listing fees of BSE, and the 
website of the Company is not updated under regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR) 2015.

I further report that the company has �iled the ROC e-forms with a delay. 

I further report that the compliance by the company with applicable �inancial law like direct and 
indirect tax law has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to the review 
by statutory �inancial audit and other designated professionals.

For	Sandeep	Dubey	&	Associates
(Practicing	Company	Secretary)

             sd/-
Sandeep	Dubey
Proprietor	
Membership	No.:47940
COP	No.:	17902
UDIN:	A047940D000792783

Date:	26.08.2025
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure	A	to	Secretarial	Audit	Report

To,
The Members,
M/s.	POLYTEX	INDIA	LTD
(CIN: L51900MH1987PLC042092)
5th Floor, 5B, Technopolis Knowledge Parkmahakali Caves Road, 
Nr Udyog Bhavan Chakala Andheri East, Chakala MIDC, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400093

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

a. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

b. I have followed the audit practices and processes as applicable to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The veri�ication 
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are re�lected in secretarial records. We 
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.

c. I have not veri�ied the correctness and appropriateness of �inancial records and Books of 
Account of the Company.

d. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance 
of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events, etc.

e. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, 
Regulations, Standards are the responsibility of management. My examination was limited 
to the veri�ication of procedures on test basis.

f. In preparing the report, I have relied on the correctness and accuracy of the information 
provided to me orally and in writing by on behalf of the Company.

g. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the ef�icacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company.

For	Sandeep	Dubey	&	Associates
(Practicing	Company	Secretary)

    sd/-
CS	Sandeep	Dubey	
ACS	No.:	47940	
COP	No.:	17902
UDIN:	A047940D000792783

Date:	26.08.2025
Place:	Mumbai
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CERTIFICATE	OF	NON-DISQUALIFICATION	OF	DIRECTORS
(Pursuant	to	Regulation	34(3)	and	Schedule	V	Para	C	clause	(10)	(i)	of	the	SEBI	(Listing	

Obligations	and	Disclosure	Requirements)	Regulations,	2015)
To 
The Members 
M/s.	Polytex	India	Limited	
5th Floor, 5B, Technopolis Knowledge Parkmahakali Caves Road, 
Nr. Udyog Bhavan Chakala Andheri East, Chakala MIDC, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400093

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors M/s. Polytex India Limited (CIN- L51900MH1987PLC042092) having its registered 
of�ice 5th Floor, 5b, Technopolis Knowledge Parkmahakali Caves Road,  NrUdyog Bhavan Chakala 
Andheri East, ChakalaMIDC, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400093  (‘the Company’), produced 
before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certi�icate, in accordance with 
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule-V Para-C, Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015. 

 In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the veri�ications (including 
Directors Identi�ication Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to me by the of�icers of the Company, I hereby certify that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company for the Financial Year ending on 31/03/ 2025 
have been debarred or disquali�ied from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New 
Delhi or any such other Statutory Authority. 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our veri�ication. This certi�icate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the ef�iciency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company.

For	Sandeep	Dubey	&	Associate
(Practicing	Company	Secretary)

    sd/-
CS	Sandeep	Dubey																																																									
ACS	No.:	47940																																																															
COP	No.:	17902
UDIN:		A047940G000812308	
Place:	Mumbai
Date:	26.08.2025

POLYTEX INDIA LTD                                                                            Annual Report 2024-25

46



Annexure	III

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other 
details in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the �inancial year 2024-25

 NIL

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Of�icer and 
Company Secretary during the �inancial year 2024-25

Mr. Jigna Arvind Kariya    : 0%

Mr. Arvind Kariya (WTD & CFO)  : 0%

*Mrs. Anju Surajsingh Chauhan  : 0%

(Company Secretary)

3. The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the �inancial year 2024-2 
was Rs. 1,35,000/-, there was increase of 0% in the median remuneration of employees;

4. There were 1 numbers of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st 
March, 2025

5. mechanism to ensure that the increase is commensurate with the performance of employee 
and company. The explanation on the relationship between increase in remuneration and 
company performance: While recommending increase in remuneration, the Company 
takes into account various factors like �inancial performance of the Company and the group, 
comparison with peers, and consideration towards cost of living adjustments and in�lation. 
Average increase in employee remuneration for the F.Y. 2024-25 is 0%. The calculation of 
average increase in employees’ remuneration is done based on comparable employees. The 
Company follows holistic performance review

6. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last �inancial year i.e. 2024-25, and comparison with the decrease in the 
managerial remuneration for the same �inancial year.

There were no exceptional circumstances for increase in Managerial Remuneration.

7. Af�irmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: It is 
af�irmed that the Remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

Remuneration
paid to
employees
excluding
managerial
personnel for
the FY 2024-
25

135000

Remuneration
paid to
employees
excluding
managerial
personnel for
the FY 2024-
25

135000

% change in
remuneration
paid to
employees
excluding
managerial
personnel

0%

Remuneration
paid to
managerial
personnel for
the FY 2024-
25

Nil

Remuneration
paid to
managerial
personnel for 
the
FY 2024-25

Nil

(%) change in
remuneration
paid to
managerial
personnel

Nil
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MANAGEMENT'S	DISCUSSION	AND	ANALYSIS

1.	 Global	Economy
The global economy remained resilient in the year 2024 (Calendar Year 2024), expanding at 
3.2% (as per IMF World economic outlook, Apr’25). The rapid rise in trade tensions and 
heightened policy uncertainty are likely to exert a substantial drag on global economic activity. It 
is estimated to grow by 2.8% in CY2025 and 3% in CY2026, much below the historical average of 
3.7% (2000–19) due to global challenges on various fronts. While strong real income growth and 
lower interest rates boosted activity, weaker government spending, sluggish consumer 
con�idence, and external demand �luctuations restrained growth in some regions.

In advanced economies, the U.S. growth forecast for CY2025 is expected to slow down to 1.8%, on 
account of greater policy uncertainty, trade tensions and softer demand momentum, whereas the 
euro area is expected to grow at 0.8%, before rising to 1.4% in 2026 as �inancial conditions 
improve. Other advanced economies see stable growth, with recovering incomes offset by trade 
uncertainties. In emerging markets and developing economies, growth is expected to slow down 
to 3.7% in 2025 due to various trade measures in recent times. On the back of the recently 
implemented tariffs and prolonged trade policy uncertainty, China’s growth was revised 
downward to 4% in 2025. India’s growth to remain stable at 6.2% in 2025 and 6.3% in 2026 
supported by private consumption, particularly in rural areas.

Global trade expanded by nearly US$1.2 trillion in 2024, reaching US$33 trillion which is a result 
of 9% growth in services trade and 2% growth in goods trade. In 2024, trade growth in 
developing countries outpaced that of developed countries. Developing nations, particularly 
China and India, saw better than average trade expansion, while many developed nations 
experienced trade contractions. However, the global economy is entering a new phase of 
heightened trade tensions as the Trump 2.0 administration rolls out fresh tariffs, potentially 
triggering reciprocal measures from key trading partners. India’s trade position remains 
resilient, supported by a strong services sector, proactive domestic policies, and strategic shifts 
toward higher-value exports such as electronics and pharmaceuticals. Global growth rate is 
expected to soften to 2.8% in CY2025 on account of the imposition of new bilateral tariff rates, the 
associated increase in policy and geopolitical uncertainties.

2.	 Indian	Economy:
India retained its position as the 5th largest economy, maintained its status as the fastest growing 
amongst large economies and is expected to be the third largest economy by 2027 (crossing GDP 
of $5 Tn) after USA and China. The Indian economy is expected to grow by 6.2% in CY25.

Table: India set to Become 3rd Largest Economy by 2027
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Source: IMF World economic outlook, Apr’25

3.	 Indian	NBFC	Industry	

India, as one of the fastest growing and largest economies globally, presents a conducive 
environment for the expansion of its credit market. The total NBFC credit outstanding stood at 
approximately ̀  52 trillion as of December 2024 and is projected to cross ̀  60 trillion by FY2026, 
re�lecting the sector’s continued expansion. Amongst banks, NBFC and All India Financial 
Institutions, NBFCs have maintained 21-24% share of credit from FY2017 to FY2024. As India 
targets becoming a $5 trillion economy in the coming years, the demand for �inancing is set to 
increase, underscoring the vital role of NBFCs in supporting economic growth and development.
Retail loans, which accounted for 58% of total NBFC credit in December 2024, remain the 
cornerstone of growth. Unsecured business loans accounted for 28% of retail NBFC credit in 
December 2024. Earlier, RBI had raised risk weights by 25 bps to 125% on unsecured retail loans, 

Source:	IMF	World	economic	outlook,	Jan’24
Chart:	India’s	GDP	growth	rate,	highest	amongst	peers
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due to its indiscriminate growth, especially in personal loans and credit cards. Asset segments 
such as micro�inance, personal loans, credit cards and unsecured business loans witnessed 
higher stress in FY2025, leading to higher delinquencies and write-of

Over the years, NBFCs have signi�icantly strengthened their balance sheets, marked by reduced 
leverage and improved asset quality, with a notable shift towards the retail segment. NBFCs are 
effectively utilising digital data to improve credit assessments and operational ef�iciency. The 
interest of equity investors remains strong and there is vast pool of debt capital overseas which is 
largely untapped. With such a stable foundation, the sector remains well-positioned to navigate 
the evolving regulatory environment while maintaining momentum.

4.	 Internal	Control	System	and	Adequacy:
Internal Control measures and systems are established to ensure the correctness of the 
transactions and safe guarding of the assets. The control systems set on place are checked and 
further supplemented by MIS which provided for planned expenditure and information on 
disposal and acquisition of assets. Your company has an adequate system of internal control, 
designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded; transactions are executed 
in accordance with management's authorisation and properly recorded. Accounting records are 
adequate for preparation of �inancial statements and other �inancial information. Besides, the 
management has put in place system for review and monitoring of non-performing assets, if any 
of the company for effecting recoveries.

5.	 Financial:
The �inancial performance of the Company has been satisfactory in the year under review. The 
Financial performances of the Company are given as under:-

Performance	 Year	ended		 Year	ended	
	 31st	March,	2025	 31st	March,	2024

Pro�it/(Loss) before Depreciation and Taxation (10,76,353) (16,10,657)

Depreciation NIL NIL

Pro�it/(Loss) before Tax (10,76,353) (16,10,657)

Pro�it after Tax (10,65,422) (16,13,237)

Proposed Dividend NIL NIL

Interim Dividend NIL NIL

Dividend Tax NIL NIL

6.	 Human	Resources:
Your company always regards human resources as its most valuable asset and continuously 
evolves policies and process to attract and retain its substantial pool of managerial resources 
through friendly work environment that encourages initiatives by individuals and recognizes 
their performance. The company has a competency based performance and potential appraisal 
systems for identifying and developing managerial talents and is reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
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Emphasis is laid on providing adequate training to its employees, to meet the attitudinal and 
cultural values of the organization to achieve customer satisfaction.

7.	 Disclaimer:
Certain Statements in the management Discussion and Analysis describing the company‟ s views 
about the industry, expectations, objectives, etc. may be understood within the meaning of 
applicable laws and regulations. Factors like changes in Government regulations, tax laws and 
other factors are such a s industrial relations a n d economic developments etc. may further 
in�luence the company’s operations or performance.

REPORT	ON	CORPORATE	GOVERNANCE
The detailed report for the �inancial year ended March 31, 2024 on the compliance with the 
Corporate Governance requirements as speci�ied under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred 
to as „Listing Regulations‟), as set out below

Company's	Philosophy	on	Code	of	Governance:
Your Company is committed to bring about good corporate governance practices. It strongly 
believes in attaining transparency, accountability and equity, in all its operations, and in its 
interactions with stakeholders including shareholders, customers, employees, the government 
and the lenders. 

The Company believes that the essence of Good Governance lies in promoting and maintaining 
integrity, transparency and accountability across the organization.

1.				Board	of	Directors
(a)	 Composition	of	the	Board
The Board of Directors is headed by an Executive Chairman, Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya who is a 
Whole Time Director of the Company. The Board is comprised of committed and eminent persons 
with considerable professional experience in varied �ields and comprises a majority of Non-
Executive Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors is in conformity with Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

(b)	 Board	Meetings	and	AGM/EGM
Six Board Meetings were held during the year under review. The dates on which the meetings 
were held are 15.04.2024, 30.05.2024, 29.06.2024, 13.08.2024, 14.11.2024 and 30.01.2025. The 
Annual General Meeting was held on 30.09.202
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Director

Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya

Mrs. Jegna Kariya

Mrs. Deepa Jayramdas 
Lakhawani

Mrs. Heena Gurmukhdas 
Kukreja

Mr. Kapil Purohit

Whether Promoter, Executive, 
Non-Executive, Independent 

Non-Executive, Nominee

Chairman – Executive

Non- Executive Independent 
Director

Independent - Non-Executive

Independent - Non-Executive

Independent - Non-Executive

Number of 
Board 

Meetings 
attended

6

6

6

6

6

Whether 
attended 
last AGM

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No. of 
Directorshi

ps held#

5

2

3

1

2

No. of 
Board 

Committe
s of other 
Companie
s in which 
a Member 

or a 
Chairman

@

0

0

2

0

0

Directors'	Attendance	Record	and	Directorships	held

#above mentioned directorship(s) includes directorships in Polytex India Limited and excludes 
alternate directorship and directorship in foreign companies and private companies which are 
neither a subsidiary nor a holding company of a public company.

@Excludes committees other than Audit Committee & Shareholders’/ Investors’ Grievance 
Committee and Companies other than public limited companies.

(c)	 Details	of	Directors	Seeking	Re–Election
Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Arvind Mulji Kariya, Director of the 
Company, retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting.

3.	 Board	Committees:

(a)	 Audit	Committee:
As on 31st March, 2025, the Audit Committee comprises of the following three Non–Executive 
Independent Directors:

Mrs.	Deepa	Jayramdas	Lakhawani  - Chairman

Mrs.	Heena	Gurmukhdas	Kukreja  - Member 

Mr.	Kapil	Purohit     - Member

The Audit Committee met Four times i.e. on 30.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 14.11.2024 and 30.01.2025 
during the �inancial year 2024-25. Details of attendance of each member are as follows:
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Name	 Number	of	Audit	Committee	Meetings	attended

Mrs.	Deepa	Jayramdas	Lakhawani	 4

Mrs.	Heena	Gurmukhdas	Kukreja	 4

Mr.	Kapil	Purohit	 4

Terms	of	Reference:

The terms of reference, role and scope of the Audit Committee covers the matters speci�ied under 
Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
read with section 177(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 such as overseeing of the Company’s 
�inancial reporting process, recommending the appointment/re-appointment of Statutory 
Auditors and �ixation of their fees, reviewing quarterly, half yearly and annual �inancial 
statements, changes in accounting policies & practices, compliances with the accounting 
standards, major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 
management, compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to �inancial 
statements, scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments, disclosures of related party 
transactions, if any, scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments, evaluation of internal 
�inancial controls, review of uses/application of funds raised through an issue i.e. public issue, 
rights issue, preferential issue, etc., before they are submitted to the Board of Directors. The 
Committee also reviews Management Discussion and Analysis of �inancial condition and results 
of operations and statement of signi�icant related party transactions submitted by Management.
The Audit Committee’s functions include reviewing the internal audit reports, adequacy of the 
internal audit functions, its structure, reporting process, audit coverage and frequency of 
internal audits. The responsibility of the Committee is to also review the �indings of any internal 
investigation by the internal auditors in matters relating to suspected fraud or irregularity or 
failure of internal control systems of material nature, if any and report the same to the Board.

(b)	 Nomination	and	Remuneration	Committee:	Composition:
As on 31st March, 2025, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the 
following three Non-Executive and Independent Directors:

Mrs. Deepa Jayramdas Lakhawani  - Chairman

Mrs. Heena Gurmukhdas Kukreja  - Member 

Mr. Kapil Purohit    - Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee met for 3 times in the year on 15.04.2024, 29.06.2024 
and 13.08.2024 during the �inancial year 2024-25 Details of attendance of each member are as 
follows:

Name	 Number	of	Nomination	and	Remuneration	
Committee	Meetings	attended

Mrs. Deepa Jayramdas Lakhawani 3

Mrs. Heena Gurmukhdas Kukreja 3

Mr. Kapil Purohit 3
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Terms	of	Reference:

The terms of reference of the Committeee interalia, include the following:

• To review, assess and recommend appointment and remuneration of executive directors.

• To review the remuneration packages payable to executive directors periodically and 
recommend suitable revision/ increments, whenever required to the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

• To recommend the commission payable to non-executive directors in accordance with and 
upto the limits laid down under the Companies Act, 2013.

• To identify persons who are quali�ied to become directors and who may be appointed in 
senior management in accordance with criteria laid down.

• To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of the director and shall carry 
out evaluation of every director performance.

• To formulate criteria for determining quali�ications, positive attributes and independence 
of the director.

• To recommend to the Board of a ‘policy’ relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees.

• To devise a policy on Board Diversity

• To carry out such other functions as delegated by the Board from time to time.

Remuneration	Policy:
The Board of Directors of the Company have approved Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the 
Company, which sets out the guiding principles for appointment & remuneration of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company.

Appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior 
Management:

I.	 Appointment	Criteria	and	Quali�ications:
a) A person being appointed as director, KMP or in senior management should possess 
adequate quali�ication, expertise and experience for the position he/she is considered for 
appointment.

b) Independent Director:
i) Quali�ications of Independent Director:
An Independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or 
more �ields of �inance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate 
governance, operations or other disciplines related to the Company's business.

ii) Positive attributes of Independent Directors:
An independent director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses relevant expertise and 
experience and who shall uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; act objectively and 
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constructively; exercise his responsibilities in a bona-�ide manner in the interest of the Company; 
devote suf�icient time and attention to his professional obligations for informed and balanced 
decision making; and assist the Company in implementing the best corporate governance 
practices.

1.	 Removal:
Due to reasons for any disquali�ication mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, 
rules and regulations there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons 
recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the 
provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

2.	 Retirement:
The Director KMP andSeniorManagementPersonnelshallretireaspertheapplicableprovisionsof 
the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the 
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise 
even after attaining the retirement age, for the bene�it of the Company.

II.	 Remuneration:

A.	 Directors:

a) Executive Directors (Managing Director, Manager or Whole Time Director):

i) At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Executive Directors shall be paid such 
remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the Nomination 
and Remuneration (N&R) Committee and the Board of Directors) with in the overall limits 
prescribed under the CompaniesAct,2013.

ii) The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in 
General Meeting as per the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013.

iii) The remuneration of the Manager/ CEO/ Managing Director/ Whole Time Director is 
broadly divided into �ixed and incentive pay re�lecting short and long term performance 
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company. In determining the remuneration 
(including the �ixed increment and performance bonus), the Committee shall consider the 
following:

• the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark; balance between �ixed and 
incentive pay re�lecting short and long term performance objectives, appropriate to the working 
of the Company and its goals;

• responsibilityrequiredtobeshouldered,theindustrybenchmarksandthecurrenttrends;

• The Company's performance vis-a-vis the annual budget achievement and individual 
performance.
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b) Non-Executive Director:

• The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive fees for attending meeting of Board 
or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rupees One Lakh 
per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central 
Government from time to time.

• A Non-Executive Director may be paid commission on an annual basis, of such sum as may 
be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee.

• The Committee may recommend to the Board, the payment of commission, to reinforce the 
principles of collective responsibility of the Board.

• In determining the quantum of commission payable to the Directors, the Committee shall 
make its recommendation after taking into consideration the overall performance of the 
Company and the onerous responsibilities required to be shouldered by the Director.

• The total commission payable to the Directors shall not exceed prescribed limits as 
speci�ied under Companies Act, 2013.

• The commission shall be payable on pro-rata basis to those Directors who occupy of�ice for 
part of the year.

B.	 KMP	&	Senior	Managerial	Personnel:

The remuneration to the KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be based on following 
guidelines:

• maintaining a balance between �ixed and incentive pay re�lecting short and long term 
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company; 

• compensation should be reasonable and suf�icient to attract retain and motivate KMP and 
senior management;

• Remuneration payable should comprise of a �ixed component and a performance linked 
variable based on the extent of achievement of individual performance versus overall 
performance of the Company;

• Remuneration shall be also considered in form of long term incentive plans for key 
employees, based on their contribution, position and length of service, in the nature of 
ESOPS/ESPS.

III.	 Evaluation:
TheCommitteeshallcarryoutevaluationofperformanceofeveryDirectoratregularinterval(yearly)
.TheCommitteeshallalsoformulateandprovidecriteriaforevaluationofIndependentDirectorsand
theBoardasawhole,ifapplicable.
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Remuneration	to	Directors:
Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the year ended 31.03.2025 are as 
follows:

Name

Mr. Arvind 
Mulji 

Kariya

Relation	
with	

Polytex

Whole Time 
Director &	

CFO

Inter-se	
Relation

Husband of 
Jegna 

Arvind 
Kariya

Salary

-

Stock	
Option

-

Commi
ssion

-

Contribut
ion	to	

Provident	
Fund	and	
other	
funds

-

Perqui
sites

-

Total

-

Details of Remuneration / Compensation Paid to the Non- Executive / Independent Director 
During the Year Ended 31.03.2025:

The Non Executive Directors do not draw any remuneration from the Company. The Board of 
Directors of the Company has resolved to waive the Sitting Fees for attending all the meetings of 
the Board as well as committees and hence the Non Executive Directors have not drawn any 
sitting fees for attending the Board Meetings and Meeting of any Committees.

The Company did not have any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Non Executive 
Directors during 2024-2025.

Disclosure of Shareholding by Non-Executive Directors

Sr.	No	 Name	of	Director	 No.	of	Shares	Held

1 Mrs .Deepa Jayramdas Lakhawani NIL

2 Mrs. Heena Gurmukhdas Kukreja NIL

3 Mr. Kapil Purohit NIL

4 Mrs. Jegna Arvind Kariya 22,00,500

(c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee:
The constitution and the term of reference of the Stake holders Relationship Committee are in 
compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of Listing 
Regulations. As on 31st March, 2024, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of the 
following 3 Non–Executive - Independent Directors::

Mrs. Deepa Jayramdas Lakhawani - Chairman

Mrs. Heena Gurmukhdas Kukreja - Member

Mr.Kapil Purohit   - Member
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Date	&	Time

30thSeptember, 2024 
03.00 pm

30thSeptember, 2023 
03.00 pm

30thSeptember, 2022 
03.00 pm

Location

through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means

through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means

through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means

Special	Resolution	Passed

NIL

NIL

NIL

Terms	of	Reference:

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as follows:

Consider and resolve the grievance of security holders of the Company including redressal of 
investors complaints such as transfer or credit of securities, non–receipt of dividend / notice / 
annual reports, etc. and all other securities –holders related matters.

Name and designation of Compliance Of�icer: Mrs. Anju Surajsingh Chauhan, Company Secretary 
of the Company was performing the duties of Compliance Of�icer

Detail	of	share	holders’	Complaints	received	and	disposed	of	during	the	year	under	review	
are	as	under:

Pending at the beginning of the �inancial year  Nil

Received during the �inancial year    Nil

Disposed off during the �inancial year   Nil

Pending at the end of the �inancial year   Nil

4.	 Familiarization	Programme	for	Independent	Directors:

The Independent Directors are familiarized, interalia, with the Company, their duties, roles and 
responsibilities, the nature of the industry, the business model of the Company. The details of the 
same can be viewed at http://www.polytexindia.com/corporategovernance.
General Body Meetings:

(a) Location and time, where last 3 years' Annual General Meetings were held:

(b)	 Postal	Ballot:

During the year ended March 31, 2025, no resolutions were passed through Postal Ballot. None of 
the business proposed to be transacted at the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires passing a 
resolution thorough Postal Ballot. No Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through 
Postal Ballot at the ensuing AGM.
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5.	 Other	Disclosures:

(a)	 Related	Party	Transactions

Disclosures on materially signi�icant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company 
of material nature, with its promoters, the Directors or the management, their subsidiaries or 
relatives etc. that may have potential con�lict with the interests of Company at large:

None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in con�lict with the interest of the 
Company at large. The Related Party Transaction policy is posted on the Company’s Website 
www.polytexindia.com

In the preparation of �inancial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to the extent applicable.

(b)	 Whistle	Blower	Policy
Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Listing 
Regulations, the Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of Directors 
and employees to report to the management about the unethical behavior, fraud or violation of 
Company’s code of conduct.

(c) The Company has generally complied with all the requirements of Listing Regulation, 2015 
entered in to with the Stock Exchange(s) or Securities and Exchange Board of India or any 
Statutory Authority on matters related to capital markets, as applicable from time to time.

(d) No penalty was imposed or strictures passed against the Company by the Stock Exchanges 
or SEBI or any statutory authorities on any matter related to capital markets during last three 
years.

6.	 CEO/CFO	Certi�ication
Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya - Chief Financial Of�icer of the Company have certi�ied to the Board with 
regards to the compliance in terms of regulation 17(8) of Listing Regulations.

7.	 Means	of	Communication

(a) Quarterly Results are published in Active Times, English daily newspaper circulating in 
substantially the whole of India and in Mumbai Lakshadeep Marathi daily newspaper.

(b) Investor E-mail ID of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents: All the share related requests / 
queries / correspondence, if any, are to be forwarded by the investors to the Registrar and 
Transfer Agents of the Company, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd and/or e-mail them to 
rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.

(c) BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre: The Listing Centre is a web based application 
designed by BSE for Corporates. The Shareholding Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, 
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Financial Results, Analyst Presentations, Press Release and other intimations are �iled 
electronically on BSE’s Listing Centre.

(d) SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): the investor Complaints are processed in a 
centralised web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are: 
Centralised database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by 
concerned companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its 
current status.

(e) The Management Discussion & Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report.

(f) As required in terms of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has 
designated an e-mail ID exclusively for the purpose of registering complaints by investors. The e-
mail ID is polytexindia@gmail.com. 

General	Shareholder	Information

AGM: Date, Time and Venue

Financial Year

Listing on Stock Exchanges

Stock Code

Market Price Data: High, Low During 
each month in last �inancial year

Registrar and Transfer Agents

Share Transfer System

30th September,2025 at 03.00 p.m. through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means

The �inancial year under review covers the period 1st 
April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025.

1. BSE Limited, Mumbai
The Company has not paid the listing fees for the 
period 1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025 due to 
shortage of funds and the same is in the process to be 
paid.

1. 512481 on BSE Ltd.
2. ISIN Number for NSDL & CDSL - INE012F01016

The details are available as per Annexure "A”

Link	Intime	IndiaPvt.	Ltd
Registrars: C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli 
(West),Mumbai - 400083

The Company’s shares are traded in the Stock 
Exchange compulsorily in demat mode. Shares sent 
for physical transfer or ematerialization requests are 
registered promptly within stipulated time from the 
date of receipt of completed and validly executed 
documents.
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Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

Distribution of Shareholding and share
holding pattern as on 31.03.2025

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or 
any Convertible instruments conversion 
date and likely impact on equity

Plant Locations

Address for correspondence

100% of the Paid-up Capital have been 
dematerialized as on 31.03.2025. The trading/ 
liquidity details are given at Annexure 'A' below.

Please see Annexure 'B’

N.A

N.A

Shareholders should address correspondence to:

Link	Intime	India	Pvt.	Ltd

Registrars

C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai – 400083.

 Email :rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.

Annexure	'A’

Stock	Market	Data	(for	face	value	of	Rs.	10/-	per	share):

	 Month	 High	(Rs.)	 Low	(Rs.)	 Volume	(Nos.)

 Apr-24 7.21 5.13 207804

 May-24 9.61 6.84 199692

 Jun-24 9.80 9.24 186304

 Jul-24 9.06 7.40 193948

 Aug-24 7.03 6.04 146491

 Sep-24 6.66 5.27 119373

 Oct-24 5.88 5.03 61825

 Nov-24 7.12 5.87 115392

 Dec-24 7.84 6.11 49550

 Jan-25 6.40 5.54 40380

 Feb-25 6.06 5.24 31130

 Mar-25 6.47 5.31 34925

Data based on BSE website:
(https://www.bseindia.com/markets/equity/EQReports/StockPrcHistori.aspx?�lag=0&type=
ETF)
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Annexure	B
8.	 Category	of	Share	holdersas	on	31st	March,	2025:

Category	 No.	of	shares	 Percentage

Corporate Bodies (Promoter Co) 460000 3.4074

Clearing Members 17205 0.1274

Other Bodies Corporate 195352 1.4471

Hindu Undivided Family 273333 2.0247

Non Resident Indians 8022 0.0594

Non Resident (Non Repatriable) 5651 0.0419

Public 3122219 23.1275

Promoters 4448000 32.9481

Body Corporate - Ltd Liability Partnership 12944 0.0959

Investor Education And Protection Fund 369274 2.7354

Directors and their relatives (excluding 
independent Directors and nominee Directors) 4588000 33.9852

TOTAL	:	 13500000	 100

Non	Mandatory	Requirements:

(a)	 Of�ice	of	the	Chairman	of	the	Board:

The Company does not defray any secretarial expenses of the Chairman's Of�ice.

(b)	 Shareholder	Rights:

The Company's half-yearly results are furnished to the Stock Exchange and also published in the 
newspapers and therefore not sent to the shareholders.

(c)	 Audit	Quali�ication:

The Auditor's Report to the Members on the Accounts of the Company for the �inancial year 
ended 31st March, 2025 one contain any quali�ications, reservations or adverse remarks and the 
clari�ication is given by the management in the Director report
Adoption of other non–mandatory requirements under Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is being reviewed by the 
Board from time to time.

Further, the Company has complied with corporate governance requirements as speci�ied in the 
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 to the extent 
applicable.
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Declaration	relating	to	Code	of	Conduct
All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have, for the year ended 31st March 
2024 af�irmed compliance with the Code of Conduct applicable to the mas laid down by the Board 
of Directors in terms Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors

Place:	Mumbai         Sd/-
Date:	3rd	September,	2025     Arvind Mulji Kariya
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 			Director&	CFO
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 			DIN:	00216112
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CERTIFICATE	OF	COMPLIANCE

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulation, 2015 

I, Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya - Chief Financial Of�icer and Director of the Company, hereby certify on 
behalf of the Board of Directors that: 

1)  The Board have reviewed the �inancial statements and the cash �low statements for the year 
ended 31st March, 2024 and that to the best of their knowledge and belief

 a) these statements do not contain any untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; b) these statements presents true and fair view of the 
Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 
regulations. 

2)  To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company 
during the year which is fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.

3)  The Board accepts responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and 
that they have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and 
they have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, De�iciencies in the design or 
operation of internal controls, if any, of which they have take nor propose to take to rectify these 
de�iciencies. 

4)  The Board have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 

a) There are no signi�icant changes in internal control during the year;

b) There have been no signi�icant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the 
same have been disclosed in the notes to Financial Statements; and 

c) There have been no instances of signi�icant fraud of which they have become aware and the 
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a signi�icant role in the 
company’s internal control systems.

     sd/-

Arvind	Mulji	Kariya

Director	&	CFO

DIN:	00216112
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COMPLIANCE	CERTIFICATE	ON	CORPORATE	GOVERNANCE	

To

The Members

M/s.	Polytex	India	Limited

5th Floor, 5b, Technopolis Knowledge Parkmahakali Caves Road, 

Nr Udyog Bhavan Chakala Andheri East, Chakala MIDC, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400093

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Polytex India Limited 
(CIN- L51900MH1987PLC042092) for the year ended on 31/03/2025, pursuant to Regulation of 
15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. 
My examination was carried out in accordance with the guidance note on certi�ication of 
Corporate Governance, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and was limited to 
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 
of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on 
the �inancial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as 
stipulated in the LODR 2015.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the ef�iciency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company.

For	Sandeep	Dubey	&	Association		  
(Practicing Company Secretaries)

                sd/-

CS	Sandeep	Dubey

Proprietor

ACS	No.:	47940

COP	No.:	17902

UDIN:	A047940E000852361

Date:	26.08.2025

Place:	Mumbai
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INDEPENDENT	AUDITOR’S	REPORT

To the Members of 
POLYTEX	INDIA	LIMITED

Opinion
We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of POLYTEX INDIA LIMITED (“the 
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of Pro�it 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, the 
Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the standalone Ind AS �inancial statements, for the year 
ended on that date, and a summary of the signi�icant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone �inancial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
our report the aforesaid �inancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 
2013 as amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March31 2025 its pro�it including other comprehensive income its cash �lows and 
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
 
Basis	for	Opinion	
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Accounting Standards (AS) speci�ied under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the �inancial statements under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have ful�illed our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is suf�icient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis	of	Matter;
1. Valuation of the unquoted investment (as per IND AS 109) are subject to the valuation by 

independent valuer. As per management explanation, they are under process to carry out 
fair valuation from registered valuer. Due to not availability of valuation report, we are not 
able to comment on the same.

2. Company is not complied the provision of IND AS -19 for Employee bene�it. As per 
management opinion company having only one employee during the year and who is also 
not completed �ive years. 

Our opinion is not modi�ied in respect on this matter,

AGRAWAL JAIN & GUPTA
Chartered Accountants

Registered Off ice:
Plot No 5, Girdhar Colony, 
Opp. Soni Manipal Hospital,
Sikar Road, Jaipur,
Rajasthan, India

Website: www.ajngupta.com

Mumbai Off ice:
1501 One Lodha Place 
S B Marg, Lower Parel 
Mumbai - 400013, India

Email: ajnmumbai@gmail.com
Contact No.: 022-46061667
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Material	uncertainty	related	to	Going	concern		
Company	is	not	having	any	income	from	operations	during	the	year	and	Current	liabilities	is	more	
than	 the	 current	assets	 further	due	 to	non-recovery	 from	NPA	accounts.	Hence,	 these	 event	or	
conditions	indicate	that	a	is	material	uncertainty	exists	that	may	cause	signi�icant	doubt	in	the	
company’s	ability	to	continue	as	a	going	concern.	However,	the	standalone	�inancial	of	the	company	
have	been	prepared	on	a	going	concern	basis	for	as	reason	stated	on	the	said	note.
 
Key	Audit	Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signi�icance 
in our audit of the standalone �inancial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone �inancial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We 
have not determined the any matters to described to be the key audit matters.

Information	other	than	the	�inancial	statements	and	auditors’	report	thereon
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including 
Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the �inancial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the �inancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the �inancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the �inancial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities	of	Management	and	Those	Charged	with	Governance	for	the	Financial	
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these �inancial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the �inancial position, �inancial performance and cash �lows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards (AS) speci�ied under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal �inancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
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the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the �inancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the �inancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s �inancial reporting 
process.

Auditor’s	Responsibilities	for	the	Audit	of	the	Financial	Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the �inancial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to in�luence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these �inancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the �inancial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is suf�icient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal �inancial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast signi�icant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 

POLYTEX INDIA LTD                                                                            Annual Report 2024-25

68



are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
�inancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the �inancial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the �inancial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone �inancial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone �inancial statements may be in�luenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identi�ied misstatements 
in the standalone �inancial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and signi�icant audit �indings, including any signi�icant 
de�iciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report	on	Other	Legal	and	Regulatory	Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters speci�ied in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pro�it and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid �inancial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards (AS) speci�ied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disquali�ied as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal �inancial controls with reference to 
�inancial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure	B’. 

g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 
197(16), In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current 
year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The 
remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under 
section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other 
details under section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 
�inancial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identi�ied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(“Ultimate Bene�iciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Bene�iciaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identi�ied in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Bene�iciaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bene�iciaries; 
and
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(c)  Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the company.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used 
accounting software’s which did not had a features of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility.

For	Agrawal	Jain	&	Gupta	
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 013538C

                 sd/-
Sarwan	Kumar	Prajapati
Partner  
Membership No. 199969
UDIN: 25199969BMINYG6973
Date: 26th  May, 2025
Place: Mumbai

Annexure	‘A’

The	Annexure	referred	to	in	paragraph	1	of	Our	Report	on	“Other	Legal	and	Regulatory	
Requirements”.

We report that:

(i) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and    Equipment;

(B)  The company does not have intangible Assets during the year therefore these clause is not 
applicable to the company;

(b) As explained to us, Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically veri�ied by the 
management at the reasonable interval and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
veri�ication. Company does not have the property plat and equipment’s, there for this clause does 
not applicable to Company.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on veri�ication of 
records provided to us, Company does not have the immovable properties, there for this clause 
does not applicable to Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use 
assets) during the year.
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(e) As explained to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company 
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of 
the order is not applicable. 

 (b) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of �ive crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or 
�inancial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the year. 
Therefore, this clause is not applicable. 

(iii) (a)  The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company, the provisions of clause 
3(iii)(a) are not applicable to the company.

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made, 
guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all 
loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prima facie 
prejudicial to the company’s interest;

 (c)  The Company being a Non-banking Finance company is in the business of as granting 
loans and advances in the nature of loans. The schedule of repayment of principal and 
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts are regular 
except accounts which are overdue are classi�ied as special mention accounts or non-
performing assets as per RBI norms.

 (d) Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule, we are 
unable to comment whether the amount is overdue or not.

 (b) The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company, the provisions of clause 
3(iii)(e) are not applicable to the company.

 (c) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either 
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) The Company is a registered Non-Banking Finance Company to which the provisions of 
Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable, and hence reporting under 
clause (iv) of CARO 2020 is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, within the meaning of Section 
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. We are 
informed that no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law 
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or other tribunal. 

(vi) As per information & explanation given by the management, the company has not required 
to maintenance of cost records speci�ied by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of 
section 148 of the Companies Act, hence this clause is not Applicable to Companies.

(vii) (a) According to the records made available to us, company is not regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state 
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insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 
and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and 
explanation given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March 2025 for a 
period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

	 Name	of	the	Statute	 Nature	of	Dues	 Amount	in	Lacs	 	 Year

  Income Tax   TDS   1.04  2022-23, 23-34 & 24-25

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no statutory dues 
referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) As per the information and explanation provided to us and as represented to us, there were 
no transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed 
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the 
management, we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 
other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. Clause is not applicable 
because company not having any Loan liabilities.  

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company 
is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or �inancial institution or other lender;

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not obtained money by way of term loans during the 
year hence this clause not Applicable.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the 
management, Company has not raised short term funds hence this clause not 
applicable.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on 
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, 

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (a)  The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

 (b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

(xi) (a)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, no fraud by 
the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the 
year;
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 (b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been �iled by 
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no 
whistle-blower complaints had been received by the company 

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause xii is not applicable on the company. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, where applicable and the 
details have been disclosed in the �inancial statements,

(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and the nature of its business.

(xv) On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year 
the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with him.

(xvi) (a)  The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and it has obtained the registration. 

 (b) The company is in the business of and has carried on the business of Non- Banking 
Financial activities during with valid Certi�icate of Registration (CoR) obtained from 
the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

 (c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as de�ined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)© of 
the Order is not applicable.

 (d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as de�ined in 
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly 
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) Based on our examination, the company has not incurred cash losses in the �inancial year 
and in the immediately preceding �inancial year.

(xviii) There is no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

(xix) On the information obtained from the management and audit procedures performed and 
on the basis of the �inancial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of �inancial assets and 
payment of �inancial liabilities, other information accompanying the �inancial statements, the 
auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that 
no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date;
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(xx) Based on our examination, the provision of section 135 is not applicable on the company. 
Hence this clause is not applicable on the company.

(xxi) Company have not any Subsidiaries or Joint venture hence, there is no need to prepare 
Consolidated �inancial Statements therefore Para 3 of Clause (xxi) is not applicable to company.

For	Agrawal	Jain	&	Gupta	                              
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 013538C

                    sd/-
Sarwan	Kumar	Prajapati
Partner 
Membership No. 199969
UDIN: 25199969BMINYG6973
Date: 26th May 2025
Place: Mumbai

Annexure	‘B’

Report	on	Internal	Financial	Controls	with	reference	to	�inancial	statements

Report	on	the	Internal	Financial	Controls	under	Clause	(i)	of	Sub-section	3	of	Section	143	
of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	(“the	Act”)

We have audited the internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting of POLYTEX INDIA 
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the �inancial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal �inancial controls 
system over �inancial reporting and such internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over �inancial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s	Responsibility	for	Internal	Financial	Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal �inancial 
controls based on the internal control over �inancial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal �inancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
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the orderly and ef�icient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable �inancial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’	Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal �inancial controls over 
�inancial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal �inancial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal �inancial controls system over �inancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the �inancial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf�icient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal �inancial controls system over �inancial 
reporting.

Meaning	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	Over	Financial	Reporting
A company's internal �inancial control over �inancial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of �inancial reporting and the preparation of 
�inancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal �inancial control over �inancial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly re�lect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of �inancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 
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3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the �inancial statements.

Inherent	Limitations	of	Internal	Financial	Controls	Over	Financial	Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal �inancial control over �inancial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal �inancial controls 
over �inancial reporting with reference to these standalone �inancial statements and such 
internal �inancial controls over �inancial reporting with reference to these standalone �inancial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over 
�inancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For	Agrawal	Jain	&	Gupta
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 013538C

                   sd/-
Sarwan	Kumar	Prajapati
Partner 
Membership No. 199969
UDIN: 25199969BMINYG6973
Date: 26th May 2025
Place: Mumbai
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BALANCE	SHEET	AS	AT	31st	MARCH,	2025
(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 	 PARTICULARS	 NOTE	NO.	 AS	AT	 AS	AT
	 	 	 	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24
I	 	 ASSETS
	 1	 FINANCIAL	ASSETS
  Cash and cash equivalents 3  4.88   4.88 
  Investments 4  285.12   285.12 
  Loans and advances 5  -     -   
 	 Total	 	 	290.00		 	290.00	
	 2	 NON-FINANCIAL	ASSETS
  Current assets 6  2.24   1.71 
  Property, plant and equipment 7  0.41   0.41 
  Intangible Assets 8  0.16   0.16 
  Total	 	 	2.81		 	2.28	
	 	 Total	Assets	 	 	292.81		 	292.28
	
II	 	 LIABILITIES	AND	EQUITY
	 	 LIABILITIES
	 1	 FINANCIAL	LIABILITIES
  Trade payables 9  12.48   9.12 
  Borrowings 10  22.38   15.28 
  Other �inancial  liabilities 11  6.84   7.60 
 2	 NON-FINANCIAL	LIABILITIES
  Provisions 12  3.21   1.61 
  Deferred Tax Liabilities-Net 13  0.00   0.11 
  Other Non-Financial Liabilities 14  -     -   
 	 Total	 	 	44.91		 	33.73	
	 3	 EQUITY
  Equity share capital 15  1,350.00   1,350.00 
  Other Equity 16  (1,102.10)  (1,091.45)
 	 Equity	Attributable	to	Owner	of	Company	 	 	247.90		 	258.55	
	 	 Total	Liabilities	and	Equity	 	 	292.81		 	292.28

Signi�icant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	on	Financial	Statements	 1	to	30
	 	 	
As	per	our	attached	report	of	even	date

For	Agrawal	Jain	&	Gupta	 	 For	and	on	Behalf	of	the	Board
Chartered	Accountants											 	 Polytex	India	Limited
Firm	Registration	No.	013538C

	 sd/-	 	 	 	 	 sd/-	 	 	 	 sd/-
Sarwan	Kumar	Prajapati	 	 Jegna	Arvind	Kariya	 	 Arvind	Mulji	Kariya
Partner																										 	 	 (Director)			 	 	 (Director	&	CFO)
Membership	No.	:199969	 	 DIN:02376901			 	 DIN:00216112
UDIN:	25199969BMINYG6973
	 	 	 	 	 	 sd/-
Place	:	Mumbai		 	 	 Anju	Chauhan
Date	:	26th	May	2025	 	 	 Company	Secretary
	 	 	 	 	 PAN:	BPCPP6173F
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STATEMENT	OF	CHANGES	IN	EQUITY	FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31ST	MARCH,	2025

(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

EQUITY	SHARE	CAPITAL

Particulars	 	 	 	Amount

As	at	31st	March,	2024	 	 	 1350.00

Changes in equity share capital     -

As	at	31st	March,	2025	 	 	 1350.00

    

OTHER	EQUITY

	 	 	 Statutory	 General	 Pro�it	and	Loss	
	 	 	 Reserve	 Reserve	 Account	 Total

Balance as at March 31, 2023  -     5.65   (1,080.96)  (1,075.31)

Less: Provision for Doubtful Assets Period 1-2 Years    -     -   

Transfer to/from Pro�it and Loss Account   -     (16.13)  (16.13)

Balance as at March 31, 2024  -     5.65   (1,097.09)  (1,091.45)

Less: Provision for Doubtful Assets Period 1-2 Years    -     -   

Transfer to/from Pro�it and Loss Account   -     (10.65)  (10.65)

Balance as at March 31, 2025  -     5.65   (1,107.75)  (1,102.10)

Signi�icant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	on	Financial	Statements	 1	to	30
	 	 	
As	per	our	attached	report	of	even	date

For	Agrawal	Jain	&	Gupta	 	 For	and	on	Behalf	of	the	Board
Chartered	Accountants											 	 Polytex	India	Limited
Firm	Registration	No.	013538C

	 sd/-	 	 	 	 	 sd/-	 	 	 	 sd/-
Sarwan	Kumar	Prajapati	 	 Jegna	Arvind	Kariya	 	 Arvind	Mulji	Kariya
Partner																										 	 	 (Director)			 	 	 (Director)
Membership	No.	:199969	 	 DIN:02376901			 	 DIN:00216112
UDIN:	25199969BMINYG6973
	 	 	 	 	 	 sd/-
Place	:	Mumbai		 	 	 Anju	Chauhan
Date	:	26th	May	2025	 	 	 Company	Secretary
	 	 	 	 	 PAN:	BPCPP6173F
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Notes	Forming	part	of	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2025

(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note	3

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

Cash in hand  0.04   0.04 

Balance with Banks:  4.83   4.83 

Total	 	 	 		 4.88		 	4.88	

Cash	and	Cash	Equivalents	as	per	Cash	Flow	Statement	 	 4.88		 	4.88	

       -   

Note	4

Investments	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

At	Amortised	Cost

Quoted	Equity	Shares

Unquoted	Shares

81,000 Equity Shares of Roochi Food Plaza Pvt. Ltd. 

(FV Rs.10) Purchase Cost: 81,000 Shares @Rs. 350  285.12   285.12 

Add: Fair Valuation Gain/(Loss)   -     -   

Total	 	 	 		 285.12		 	285.12	    

       -   

Note	6

Current	Assets	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

TDS Receivable  1.71   1.71 

Prepaid Exp.  0.53   -   

Total	 	 	 		 2.24		 	1.71
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CASH	FLOW	STATEMENT	FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31ST	MARCH,	2025
(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)  

PARTICULARS	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24
A.	CASH	FLOW	FROM	OPERATING	ACTIVITIES
Net	Pro�it	before	Tax	as	per	Statement	of	Pro�it	and	Loss   (10.76)  (16.11)
Adjusted	for:
 Depreciation and amortisation expenses   -     -   
 Interest Received During the year   -     -   
 Fair Valuation gain on Investments   -     -   
 Provision For Doubtful Assets Period Upto 1-2 Years   -     -   
 Extra Tax Provision Made Now Reversed   -     -   
Operating	Pro�it	before	Working	Capital	Changes	 		 (10.76)	 	(16.11)
Adjusted for:
 Decrease/ (increase) in Loans   -     -   
 Decrease/ (increase) in Other Financial Assets   -     -   
 Decrease/ (increase) in Current Assets   (0.53)  0.24 
 Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables   3.35   1.18 
 Increase/ (decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities   (0.77)  5.12 
 Increase/ (decrease) in Provisions   1.60   0.64 
  
Cash	Generated	from	Operations	 	 	(7.11)	 	(8.94)
Taxes Paid (Net)   -     -   
Net	Cash	Flow	Used	in	Operating	Activities	 		 (7.11)	 	(8.94)
  
B.	CASH	FLOW	FROM	INVESTING	ACTIVITIES  
Disbursement of Loan &  Advances   -     -   
Interest Income   -     -   
Net	Cash	Flow	Used	in	Investing	Activities	 		 -				 	-		 
  
C.	CASH	FLOW	FROM	FINANCING	ACTIVITIES  
Loan raised from/ (repaid to) Third Party   7.10   6.26 
Net	Cash	Flow	From	Financing	Activities	 		 7.10		 	6.26	
  
Net	Increase	in	Cash	and	Cash	Equivalents	 	 	(0.01)	 	(2.67)
Opening	Balance	of	Cash	and	Cash	Equivalents	 		 4.88		 	7.56	
Closing	Balance	of	Cash	and	Cash	Equivalents	 		 4.86		 	4.89	
	 	
Cash	and	Cash	equivalent	as	per	above	comprises	of	the	following		 31-03-2025	 31-03-2024
Cash	and	Cash	Equivalents	(Refer	Note	3)   0.04   0.04 
Earmarked balances with bank   -     -   
Short term bank deposits   4.83   4.83 
Balances	as	per	statement	of	Cash	Flows	 		 4.88		 	4.88

Signi�icant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	on	Financial	Statements	 1	to	30
	 	 	
As	per	our	attached	report	of	even	date

For	Agrawal	Jain	&	Gupta	 	 For	and	on	Behalf	of	the	Board
Chartered	Accountants											 	 Polytex	India	Limited
Firm	Registration	No.	013538C

	 sd/-	 	 	 	 	 sd/-	 	 	 	 sd/-
Sarwan	Kumar	Prajapati	 	 Jegna	Arvind	Kariya	 	 Arvind	Mulji	Kariya
Partner																										 	 	 (Director)			 	 	 (Director)
Membership	No.	:199969	 	 DIN:02376901			 	 DIN:00216112
UDIN:	25199969BMINYG6973
	 	 	 	 	 	 sd/-
Place	:	Mumbai		 	 	 Anju	Chauhan
Date	:	26th	May	2025	 	 	 Company	Secretary
	 	 	 	 	 PAN:	BPCPP6173F
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STATEMENT	OF	PROFIT	AND	LOSS	FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	31st	MARCH	2025
(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 PARTICULARS	 NOTE	NO.	 FOR	THE		 FOR	THE
	 	 	 	 	 YEAR	ENDED	 YEAR	ENDED
	 	 	 	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

I	 Income
 Income From Operation 17  -     -   
 Other Income 18  -     -   
 Total	Income	 	 	-				 	-			
II	 Expenses
 Employee Bene�it Expenses 19  1.35   4.20 
 Finance Cost 20  0.01   0.16 
 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses   -     -   
 Other Expenses 21  9.40   11.75 
 Total	Expenses	 	 	10.76		 	16.11	
III	 Pro�it	before	tax	(I-II)   (10.76)  (16.11)
IV Tax Expense:
  Current tax   -     -   
  Deferred tax  	(0.11)	 	0.03	
  Prior-period tax expenses	 	 	-				 	-			
V	 Pro�it	for	the	year	(III-IV)	 	 	(10.65)	 	(16.13)
VI	 Other	Comprehensive	Income
VII	 Total	Comprehensive	Income	for	the	year	 	 	(10.65)	 	(16.13)
	 Earnings	per	equity	share	 22
	 Basic 	 	(0.08)	 	(0.12)
	 Diluted	 	 	(0.08)	 	(0.12)

Signi�icant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	on	Financial	Statements	 1	to	30
	 	 	
As	per	our	attached	report	of	even	date

For	Agrawal	Jain	&	Gupta	 	 For	and	on	Behalf	of	the	Board
Chartered	Accountants											 	 Polytex	India	Limited
Firm	Registration	No.	013538C

	 sd/-	 	 	 	 	 sd/-	 	 	 	 sd/-
Sarwan	Kumar	Prajapati	 	 Jegna	Arvind	Kariya	 	 Arvind	Mulji	Kariya
Partner																										 	 	 (Director)			 	 	 (Director)
Membership	No.	:199969	 	 DIN:02376901			 	 DIN:00216112
UDIN:	25199969BMINYG6973
	 	 	 	 	 	 sd/-
Place	:	Mumbai		 	 	 Anju	Chauhan
Date	:	26th	May	2025	 	 	 Company	Secretary
	 	 	 	 	 PAN:	BPCPP6173F
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Notes	Forming	part	of	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2025

(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note	5

Loans	and	advances	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

(A)	Business	Loans   1,211.09   1,211.09

 Less: Impairment Loss Allowance   1,211.09   1,211.09

Total	(A)-Net  	-				 	-

(B)	Out	of	Above

(i) Secured by tangible assets    -

(ii)Unsecured   1,211.09   1,211.09

 Less: Impairment Loss Allowance   1,211.09   1,211.09

Total	(B)-Net  	-				 	-

(C	)	Out	of	Above

(i) Loans Outside India    -

(ii) Loans in India

 - Public Sector    -

 - Others   1,211.09   1,211.09

 Less: Impairment Loss Allowance   1,211.09   1,211.09

Total	(C	)-Net   -				 	-

1. Company is not booked any interest income in case of NPA account. Hence, these event or conditions 
indicate that a material. uncertainty exists that may cause signi�icant doubt in the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. However, the standalone �inancial of the company have been prepared on a 
going concern basis for as reason stated on the said note.
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Analysis	of	changes	in	gross	carrying	amount	and	corresponding	ECL	Allowances	in	relation	to	
loans	is	as	follows:

 	 FY	2024-25	 	FY	2023-24

Particulars	 Stage	1	 Stage	2	 	Stage	3		 Stage	1	 	Stage	3

Gross	carrying	amount	opening	balance  -     -     -      -

New assets originated or purchased  -     -     -      -

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write-offs)  -     -     -      -

Transfers to Stage 1  -     -     -      -

Transfers to Stage 2  -     -     -     -     -

Transfers to Stage 3  -     -     -     -     -

Gross	carrying	amount	closing	balance	 	-				 	-				 	-				 	-				 	-

Reconciliation	of	ECL	Balance

 	 FY	2024-25	 	FY	2023-24

Particulars	 Stage	1	 Stage	2	 	Stage	3		 Stage	1	 	Stage	3

Gross carrying amount opening balance  -     -     -     -

New NPA Created during the year   -     -     -     -

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write-offs)  -     -     -     -     -

Transfers to Stage 1  -     -     -     -     -

Transfers to Stage 2  -     -     -     -     -

Transfers to Stage 3  -     -     -     -     -

Gross	carrying	amount	closing	balance	 	-				 	-				 	-				 	-				 	-

 	 FY	2024-25	 	FY	2023-24

Particulars	 Stage	1	 Stage	2	 	Stage	3		 Stage	1	 	Stage	3

Gross carrying amount opening balance  -     -     -     -

New NPA Created during the year  -     -     -     -     -

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write-offs)  -     -     -     -     -

Transfers to Stage 1  -     -     -     -     -

Transfers to Stage 2  -     -     -     -     -

Transfers to Stage 3  -     -     -     -     -

Gross	carrying	amount	closing	balance	 	-				 	-				 	-				 	-				 	-
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Notes	Forming	part	of	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2025
(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note	7
	 Property,	plant	and	equipment	 Computers	&		 Computers	&		 Total
	 	 	 	 Printers	 Printers	
Cost:
At 01-Apr-2023  8.24   8.24   8.24
Additions/Disposals during the  year  -     -     -
At 31-Mar-2024  8.24		 	8.24		 	8.24
Additions/Disposals during the  year  -     -     -
Write offs during the year  -     -     -
At 31-Mar-2025  8.24		 	8.24		 	8.24

Accumulated	Depreciation:
At 01-Apr-2023  7.82   7.82   7.82
Additions/Disposals during the  year  -     -     -
At 31-Mar-2024 	7.82		 	7.82		 	7.82
Additions/Disposals during the  year  -     -     -
Write offs during the year  -     -     -
At 31-Mar-2025 	7.82		 	7.82		 	7.82

Carrying	Amount:
At 31-Mar-2023  0.41   0.41   0.41
At 31-Mar-2024  0.41   0.41   0.41
At 31-Mar-2025  0.41   0.41   0.41

Note	8
	 	 	 Intangible	Assets	 Computer	&		 Computer	&		 Total
	 	 	 	 Software	 Software
Cost:
At 01-Apr-2023  3.15   3.15   3.15
Additions/Disposals during the  year  -     -     -
At 31-Mar-2024  3.15		 	3.15		 	6.29
Additions/Disposals during the  year  -     -     -
Write offs during the year  -     -     -
At 31-Mar-2025  3.15		 	3.15		 	6.29

Accumulated	Depreciation:
At 01-Apr-2023  2.99   2.99   2.99
Additions/Disposals during the  year  -     -     -
At 31-Mar-2024  2.99		 	2.99		 	2.99
Additions/Disposals during the  year  -     -     -
Write offs during the year  -     -     -
At 31-Mar-2025  2.99		 	2.99		 	2.99

Carrying	Amount:
At 01-Apr-2023  0.16   0.16   0.31
At 31-Mar-2024  0.16   0.16   0.31
At 31-Mar-2025  0.16   0.16   0.31
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Notes	Forming	part	of	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2025

(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note	9

Trade	Payables	 31-Mar-25	 	31-Mar-24

Trade Payables  12.48    9.12

Total	 	12.48		 		 9.12

Trade	Payables	ageing	schedule:	As	at	31st	March,	2025

Particulars	 	Outstanding	for	following	periods	from	due	date	of	Payment

	 Less	than	 	1-2	years		 	2-3	years		 More	than	 Total
	 1	year	 	 	 3	years

(i) MSME  -     1.17   -     -     1.17 

(ii) Others  6.89   0.06   -     4.36   11.31 

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME  -     -     -     -     -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -     -     -     -     -

 	6.89		 	1.23		 	-				 	4.36		 	12.48

Trade	Payables	ageing	schedule:	As	at	31st	March,	2024

Particulars	 	Outstanding	for	following	periods	from	due	date	of	Payment

	 Less	than	 	1-2	years		 	2-3	years		 More	than Total
	 1	year	 	 	 3	years

(i) MSME  -     1.17   -     -     1.17

(ii) Others  3.54   0.06   -     4.36   7.95

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME  -     -     -     -     -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -     -     -     -     -

  3.54		 	1.23		 	-				 	4.36		 	9.12

Note:

Amount due to entities covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as de�ined in the Micro, 
Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, have been identi�ied on the basis of information 
available with the Company. It is informed by the management no provision has been made for interest as 
required by Interest on Delayed Payments to Small Scale and Ancillary Industrial Undertakings Act, 1993 
on amounts due to Small Scale Industries, as none of the outstanding as on date are of the entity listed in 
MSME.
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Notes	Forming	part	of	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2025

(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note	10

Short-Term	Borrowings	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

From	Related	Parties

Directors   22.38  15.28

Total	 	 	 	 22.38		 	15.28

Note	11

Other	Financial	Liabilities	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

Salary Payable   5.77   6.79

TDS Payable   1.04   0.78

Other Outstanding Expenses  0.04  0

Total	 		 	 	 6.84		 	7.60

Note	12

Long-term	Provisions	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

Provision for Taxation   -     -

Provision for Expenses  3.21  1.61

Total	 		 	 	 3.21		 	1.61

Note	13

Deferred	Tax	Liabilities-Net	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

Opening Deferred Tax   0.11   0.08

Add: During the Year   (0.11)  0.03

Total	 		 	 	 0.00		 	0.11

Note	14

Other	Non-Financial	Liabilities

Long-term	Borrowings	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

Security Deposit Received   -     -

Total	 		 	 	 -				 	-
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Notes	Forming	part	of	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2025

(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note	17

Revenue	From	Operation	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

Other	Operating	Revenue

Interest On Loan   -     -

Less: Interest Income Reversed   -     -

Total	 		 	 	 -				 	-

Note	18

Other	Income	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

Interest on Refund of IT   -     -

Total	 		 	 	 -				 	-

Note	19

Employee	Bene�it	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

Directors Remuneration   -     -

Salaries to Employees   1.35   4.20

Total	 		 	 	 1.35		 	4.20

Note	20

Finance	Cost	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

Bank Charges   0.01   0.16

Total	 		 	 	 0.01		 	0.16

Note	21

Other	Expenses	 	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24

Listing & Annual Fees   4.16   4.78

Legal and Professional charges   1.23   0.80

Auditor's fees   1.20   1.20

Internal Audit Fees   0.20   0.20

RTA Charges   1.12   1.05

Directors Sitting Fees   0.50   2.50

Advertisement Charges   0.24   0.30

ROC Filing fees   0.05   0.02

Website Charges   0.10   0.06

Other Expenses   0.48   0.80

Of�ice Expenses   0.12   0.03

Total	 		 	 	 9.40		 	11.75
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Notes	Forming	part	of	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2025
(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE	15
SHARE	CAPITAL	 	 As	at	 	 As	at
	 	31-Mar-25	 	31-Mar-24
Authorised
1,35,00,000 (March 31, 2025:1,35,00,000; 
April 01, 2024: 1,35,00,000) Equity Shares of ₹10/- each   1,350    1,350
Issued,	Subscribed	and	Paid-up
1,35,00,000 (March 31, 2025:1,35,00,000; 
April 01, 2024: 1,35,00,000) Equity Shares of ₹10/- each   1,350    1,350
Total	 	 	1,350		 		 1,350

(a)	Reconciliation	of	Shares	at	the	Beginning	and	at	the	End	of	the	reporting	period
Equity shares of ₹10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Particulars	 	No.	of	Shares	 N	 o.	of	Shares
As	at	April	01,	2023   1,35,00,000   1 ,35,00,000
Issued during the year   -      -
As	at	March	31,	2024	 		1,35,00,000		 	1	 ,35,00,000
Issued during the year   -      -
As	at	March	31,	2025	 		1,35,00,000		 	1	 ,35,00,000

(b)	Shares	held	by	each	Shareholder	holding	more	than	5%	of	the	Paid-up	Capital
 31-Mar-25	 	 31-Mar-24
Particulars	 No.	of	Shares	 %	of	holding	 No.	of	Shares	 %	of	holding
Arvind Mulji Kariya  23,87,500  17.69%  23,87,500  17.69%
Jegna Arvind Kariya  22,00,500  16.30%  22,00,500  16.30%
Paresh Mulji Kariya  20,97,500  15.54%  20,97,500  15.54%
Sadhana Paresh Kariya  23,50,500  17.41%  23,50,500  17.41%

Shares	held	by	Promoters	at	the	end	of	years	2025	 	 	 	
	 	 No.	of	 %	of	Total	 %	Change	during	
Promoter	Name	 	 Shares**	 Shares**	 the	year***
Sadhana Paresh Kariya   23,50,500  17.41% 0.00%
Paresh Mulji Kariya   20,97,500  15.54% 0.00%
Anugrah Stock & Broking Pvt. Ltd.   4,60,000  3.41% 0.00%
Total	 		 49,08,000		 36.36%	 0.00%

Shares	held	by	Promoters	at	the	end	of	years	2024   
	 	 No.	of	 %	of	Total	 %	Change	during	
Promoter	Name	 	 Shares**	 Shares**	 the	year***
Sadhana Paresh Kariya   23,50,500  17.41% 0.00%
Paresh Mulji Kariya   20,97,500  15.54% 0.00%
Anugrah Stock & Broking Pvt. Ltd.   4,60,000  3.41% 0.00%
Total	 		 49,08,000		 36.36%	 0.00%
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Notes	Forming	part	of	the	Standalone	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	ended	31st	March	2025
(All amounts are in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE:	16
Other	Equity	 As	at	 As	at				
	 31-Mar-25	 31-Mar-24
Statutory	Reserve	as	per	Section	45	IC	of	RBI	Act,	1934
At	31-March-2024  -     -
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss  -     -
At	31-March-2025	 	-				 	-

B-	General	Reserve
At	31-March-2024 5.65 5.65
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss
At	31-March-2025	 5.65	 5.65

C-Pro�it	and	Loss	Account
At	31-March-2023	 	(1,100.26)	 	(1,089.60)
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss  -     -
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve  -     -
Less: Provision for Doubtful Assets Period 1-2 Years  -     -
At	31-March-2024	 	(1,100.26)	 	(1,089.60)
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss  -     -
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve  -     -
Less: Provision for Doubtful Assets Period 1-2 Years  -     -
At	31-March-2025	 	(1,100.26)	 	(1,089.60)
	 Total	(A+B+C)	 	(1,094.61)	 	(1,083.96)
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Notes	to	Financial	Statements	for	the	period	ended	31	March	2025

22	Earnings	Per	Share	(EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the pro�it/(loss) for the period attributable to equity 
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the Period.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the pro�it/(loss) attributable to equity holders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average 
number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares 
into equity shares.

The following re�lects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

	 Particulars	 	 As	at	31st		 As	at	31st	
	 	 	 	 	 March	2025	 March	2024

 Pro�it/ (Loss) attributable to Equity shareholders (in Rs.)  (10.65)  (16.13)

 Weighted average number of Equity shareholders for 
 basic and diluted EPS   1,35,00,000   1,35,00,000

Basic	and	diluted	earnings	per	share	(in	Rs.)	 	 (0.08)	 	(0.12)

23	Related	party	transactions

Name	of	related	parties	and	description	of	relationship	with	whom	transactions	have	taken	
place	during	period	ended	31	March	2025

1.	Associates	/	Enterprises	where	control	/Signi�icant	In�luence	exists:

Rruchi Food Plaza Private Limited

2.	Relatives	of	Key	Managerial	Personnel

Arvind Mulji Kariya (HUF), Director is Karta

3.	Key	managerial	personnel

Mr. Arvind Mulji Kariya- Director

Mrs. Anju Chauhan, Company Secretary and Compliance Of�icer w.e.f. 1st July 2024

Mrs. Jegna Arvind Kariya Director

Mr. Kapil Purohit, Independent Director

Mrs. Deepa Jayramdas Lakhwani,  Independent Director

Mrs. Heena Gurmukhdas Kukreja, Independent Director
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Details	of	transactions	with	related	parties:

Sr.	No.		 Particulars	 As	at	31st		 As	at	31st	
	 	 	 	 March	2025	 March	2024

 1	 	 Rupee	Term	Loan	taken

   Arvind Mulji Kariya.  7.10   6.70

 2	 	 Rupee	Term	Loan	Repaid

   Arvind Mulji Kariya.  -     0.44

 3	 	 Salary	Paid

   Mrs. Anju Chauhan, Company Secretary and 

   Compliance Of�icer w.e.f. 1st July 2024   1.35   4.20

 4	 	 Diretor	seeting	fees

   Mr. Kapil Purohit   0.50  0.50

   Mrs. Deepa Jayramdas Lakhwani   -     1.00

   Mrs. Heena Gurmukhdas Kukreja   -     1.00

   Details of closing balances of related parties

Sr.	No.		 Particulars	 As	at	31st	 	As	at	31st	
	 	 	 	 March	2025	 March	2024

	 	 	 Closing	balance

	 1	 	 Rupee	term	Loan	taken

   Arvind Mulji Kariya.  22.38   15.28

	 2	 	 Other	Payables

   Mrs Anju Chauhan  0.10

   Mrs. Ankita Gupta  3.20   4.45

   Mr. Kapil Purohit   0.63   0.25

   Mrs. Deepa Jayramdas Lakhwani  0.63   0.75

   Mrs. Heena Gurmukhdas Kukreja  0.64   0.76

 3	 	 Investments

   Rruchi Food Plaza Private Limited  285.12   285.12

Note: Related party relationships as per Ind AS 24 have been identi�ied by the management had relied 
upon by the auditors. All the transactions are carried at arm's length price

Closing balances are presented net of taxes.

Terms	and	conditions	of	transactions	with	related	parties

The transactions with related parties are in the ordinary course of business and are on terms equivalent to 
those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the Period-end are unsecured and 
settlement occurs in cash. For the period ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not recorded any 
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken 
each �inancial year through examining the �inancial position of the related parties and the market in which 
the related parties operate.
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 Notes	to	Financial	Statements	for	the	period	ended	31	March	2025

24	 Segment	information

 The Company is engaged into one reportable business segment. No other operating segment has 
been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segment. The Company’s revenue, result, 
assets and liabilities are reported to the management for the purpose of resource allocation and 
assessment of segment performance.

25	 Details	of	micro	enterprises	and	small	enterprises	as	de�ined	under	the	Micro,	Small	and	
Medium	Enterprises	Development	(MSMED)	Act,	2006

 The Company did not have any transactions with Small Scale Industrial (‘SME’s’) Undertakings 
during the year ended March 31, 2025 and hence there are no amounts due to such undertakings. The 
identi�ication of SME’s undertakings is based on the management’s knowledge of their status.

 The Company has not received any information from “suppliers” regarding their status under the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if any, relating 
to no amount unpaid as at the year ended together with interest paid / payable as required under the 
said Act have not been furnished.

 Capital	Commitments

26 There are no capital commitments outstanding as at 31 March 2025.

 	 Particulars	 	Amt	pending	to	be	paid

      -

 	 Total

27 There are no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2025

28	 Employee	Bene�its	-	Retirement	bene�its

(a)	 De�ined	Contribution	Plan:

 Amount of Rs. NIL (31 March 2025 : Rs. NIL ) is recognised as an expense because company is having 
one employee and continue service is less than 5 years  - 'Employee Bene�it Expenses' in the 
statement of pro�it and loss.

29	 Financial	instruments	-	fair	value	measurements

 Some of the Company's �inancial assets and �inancial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of 
each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these 
�inancial assets and �inancial liabilities are determined (in particular the valuation techniques and 
inputs used).

 Fair	value	hierarchy

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the �inancial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is signi�icant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

 Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signi�icant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

 Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signi�icant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable.
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	 Particulars	 Level	 .Fair	value

 Derivative asset at FVOCI Level 2   -

 Derivative liability at FVOCI Level 2   -

 Key inputs for Level 2 fair valuation technique Discounted cash �low. Future cash �lows are 
estimated based on forward exchange rates (from 
observable forward exchange rates at the end of 
the reporting period) and contract forward rates, 
discounted at a rate that re�lects the credit risk of 
various counterparties.

 Signi�icant unobservable input  Not applicable

 Relationship of unobservable input to fair value  Not applicable

(a)	 Categories	of	�inancial	instruments

	 	 	 	 Carrying	value	 Carrying	value

	 	 Particulars	 As	at	 As	at
	 	 	 	 31	March	2025	 31	March	2024

	 Financial	assets
 Measured at amortised cost
 Trade receivables  -     -
 Investments   285.12   285.12
 Other �inancial assets   -     -
 Cash and cash equivalents  4.88   4.88

 Total	 	 	290.00		 	290.00
	
	 Financial	liabilities
	 Measured at fair value through pro�it or loss
 Measured at amortised cost
 Borrowings   22.38   15.28
 Trade payables   12.48   9.12
 Other �inancial liabilities  6.84   7.60
 
	 Total	 	 41.70		 	32.01
       
 The Company has assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other �inancial assets, 

trade payables and other �inancial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the 
short term nature of the instruments. Long term Borrowings are evaluated based on parameters 
such as interest rate and risk characteristic of �inancial project. Based on the evaluation, no impact 
has been identi�ied.
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 Notes	to	Financial	Statements	for	the	period	ended	31	March	2025

30	 Financial	risk	management	objectives	and	policies
 The Company’s principal �inancial liabilities comprise of borrowings, trade payables, other payables 

and other �inancial liabilities. The main purpose of these �inancial liabilities is to �inance the 
Company’s operations. The Company’s principal �inancial assets include trade and other receivables, 
other �inancial assets and cash and cash equivalents that arise directly from its operations.

 The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and interest rate risk.

 (A)	Market	Risk

 Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash �lows that may result from a 
change in the price of a �inancial instrument. The value of a �inancial instrument may change as a 
result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, and other market changes 
that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive 
�inancial instruments, including investments and deposits, payables and borrowings.

 The Company’s overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of �inancial markets and 
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the �inancial performance of the Company.

 The	sources	of	risks	which	the	Company	is	exposed	to	and	their	management	is	given	below:

 Risk	 Exposure	arising	from	 Measurement	 Management

 Interest rate risk Long term borrowings  Sensitivity analysis,  Interest rate swaps 
  at variable rates interest rate movements  and loan takeover for
    long term borrowings
    diversi�ication

 Credit risk Trade receivables,  Ageing analysis,  Credit monitoring,
  derivative �inancial  credit rating  credit limit and credit 
  instruments  worthiness monitoring
    of the counter parties

 Liquidity risk Borrowings and other  Rolling cash �low  Borrowing facilities
  �inancial liabilities forecasts diversi�ication   

 Details	relating	to	the	risks	are	provided	here	below:
	 (i)	Foreign	currency	risk
 

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash �lows of an exposure in 
foreign currency, which �luctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure 
to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates to import of modules, wherever required.

 The Company regularly evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency 
transactions. The Company follows the established risk management policies. It uses derivative 
instruments like forward covers/swap to hedge exposure to foreign currency risk.
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 When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of 
those derivatives to match the terms of the foreign currency exposure. The details of the foreign 
currency exposure and its carrying value are as follows:

 Outstanding	foreign	currency	exposure		 As	at	31		 	 As	at	31	
	 	 	 March	2025	 	 March	2024

	 	 	 USD	 Rs.	in	Lakhs	 USD	 Rs.	in	Lakhs

 Supplier's credit   NIL   NIL   NIL   NIL

 Interest on supplier's credit   NIL   NIL   NIL   NIL

 Foreign	currency	sensitivity	analysis
 1% increase in foreign exchange rates will decrease pro�it before tax and decrease pre tax equity by 

Rs. xxx Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. xxx Lakhs). If the rate is decreased by 1%, the pro�it before tax and 
pre tax equity will increase by an equal amount.

 Foreign	currency	sensitivity	analysis

	 Outstanding	foreign		 	 As	at	31		 	 As	at
	 currency	exposure	 	 March	2025	 	 31	March	2024

	 	 Impact	on	statement		 Impact		 Impact	on	statement			 Impact	
	 	 of	pro�it	and	loss	 on	equity	 of	pro�it	and	loss	 on	equity

 1% decrease in Rs.   -     -     -     -

 1% increase in Rs.   -     -     -     -

 (A)	Interest	rate	risk
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash �lows of a �inancial instrument will 

�luctuate because of changes in prevailing market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk 
due to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with �loating interest 
rates. Interest rate sensitivity has been calculated assuming the borrowings outstanding at the 
reporting date have been outstanding for the entire reporting period. The Company constantly 
monitors the credit markets and revisits its �inancing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity 
pro�ile and �inancing cost

 Interest	rate	sensitivity	analysis	for	1%	change	in	rate

	 Effect	on	pro�it	before	tax	 Rate	impact	 Loan	outstanding	 Amount

 31 March 2025 1%  -     -

 31 March 2024 1%  -     -

 (B)	Credit	risk
 Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer 

contract or �inancial instrument, leading to a �inancial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk 
from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and from its �inancing/investing activities, 
including deposits with banks and foreign exchange transactions.

 The carrying amount of �inancial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.
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 a.	Trade	receivables
 The Company has already evaluated the credit worthiness of its customers and did not �ind any credit 

risk related to trade receivables. As per simpli�ied approach, the Company makes provision of 
expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical 
credit loss experience to mitigate the risk of default in payments and makes appropriate provision at 
each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk.

 Total trade receivables as on 31 March 2025 is NIL.

 b.	Cash	and	cash	equivalents	and	bank	deposits
 Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits, is generally low as the Company has transacted 

with reputed banks.

 (C)	Liquidity	risk
 Liquidity risk is de�ined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations 

on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining suf�icient 
cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit 
facilities to meet obligations when due. The management is responsible for managing liquidity, 
funding as well as settlement. Further the management monitors the Company’s liquidity position 
through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash �lows.

 The table below provides details of �inancial liabilities further, based on contractual undiscounted 
payments.

 As	at	31	March	2025	 Upto	1	year	 1	to	3	years	 3	to	5	years	 Above	5	years	 Total

 Borrowings*  22.38   -     -     -     22.38

 Trade payables  12.48   -     -     -     12.48

 Other �inancial liabilities  6.84   -     -     -     6.84

 Total	 	41.70		 	-				 	-				 	-					41.70

 As	at	31	March	2024	 Upto	1	year	 1	to	3	years	 3	to	5	years	 Above	5	years	 Total

 Borrowings*  15.28   -     -     -     15.28

 Trade payables  9.12   -     -     -     9.12

 Other �inancial liabilities  7.60   -     -     -     7.60

 Total	 	32.01		 	-				 	-				 	-					32.01

 *The maturity pro�ile of borrowings is as per the actual cash �lows.

 (D)	Capital	management
 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue 

as a going concern in order to provide maximum returns for shareholders and bene�its for other 
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

 For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, securities 
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.
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 The Company monitors capital using debt to equity ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. 
The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loan and borrowings, less cash and cash 
equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

 
 Particulars	 As	at	31	March	2025	 As	at	31	March	2024

 Borrowings  22.38   15.28
 Less: Cash and cash equivalents  (4.88)  (4.88)

 Net	debt	 	17.50		 	10.41

 Equity  1,350.00   1,350.00

 Gearing	Ratio	 0.01	 0.01

 In addition, the Company has �inancial covenants relating to the borrowing facilities taken from the 
lenders like debt service coverage ratio, assets coverage ratio, debt-equity ratio and total 
outstanding liability to net worth ratio which are required to be maintained by the Company as per 
the terms and considerations of the loan agreement.
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32	 Other	statutory	information

a) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending 
against the Company for holding any Benami property.

b) As per the information and explanations to us The Company do not have any transactions with 
companies struck off.

c) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the �inancial 
Period.

d) The Company has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of 
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the Period in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961)

e) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or �inancial institution or other 
lender

f) The Company does not have any Intangible Assets, thus, disclosures relating to revaluation of 
Intangible Assets is not applicable.

g) The Company has not revalued its property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use Assets), 
thus valuation by a registered valuer as de�ined under rule 2 of the Companies (Registered Valuers 
and Valuation) Rules, 2017 is not applicable.

h) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including 
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:

 (i)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identi�ied in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate bene�iciaries) or

 (ii)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate bene�iciaries.

i) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the 
company shall:

 (i)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identi�ied in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding Party (ultimate bene�iciaries) or

 (ii)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate bene�iciaries

 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone �inancial statements
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1.	 Corporate	information
Polytex India Limited. (‘the Company’) is a company limited by shares, incorporated on 05th 
January 1987 and domiciled in India. The Company is mainly engaged in the business of lending.
 
2.	 Basis	of	preparation
The �inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time 
to time and noti�ied under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other 
relevant provisions of the Act, the Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company.

The standalone �inancial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR in lacs) which is also the 
functional currency of the Company.

The �inancial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Management is satis�ied 
that the Company shall be able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material 
uncertainty exists that may cast signi�icant doubt on the going concern assumption. In making 
this assessment, the Management has considered a wide range of information relating to present 
and future conditions, including future projections of pro�itability, cash �lows and capital 
resources. 

2.1	 Presentation	of	�inancial	statements
The Company presents its Balance Sheet in order of liquidity.

The Company prepares and present its Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pro�it and Loss and the 
Statement of Changes in Equity in the format prescribed by Division III of Schedule III to the Act. 
The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 
7 'Statement of Cash Flows’.

The Company generally reports �inancial assets and �inancial liabilities on a gross basis in the 
Balance Sheet. They are offset and reported net only when Ind AS speci�ically permits the same or 
it has an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being 
contingent on a future event. Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports 
the same on a net basis when permitted by Ind AS speci�ically unless they are material in nature.
  
Critical	accounting	estimates	and	judgments
The preparation of the Company’s �inancial statements requires Management to make use of 
estimates and judgments. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity 
involved in measurement of items, it is possible that the outcomes in the subsequent �inancial 
years could differ from those based on Management’s estimates. Accounting estimates and 
judgments are used in various line items in the �inancial statements.

2.2	Summary	of	signi�icant	accounting	policies
This note provides a list of the signi�icant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
�inancial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated.
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(I)	 Income:	-

	 (a)	 Interest	income
The Company recognises interest income using effective interest rate (EIR) on all �inancial assets 
subsequently measured under amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI). EIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes attributable to acquisition of a 
�inancial asset or assumption of a �inancial liability and it represents a rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments/receipts through the expected life of the �inancial 
asset/�inancial liability to the gross carrying amount of a �inancial asset or to the amortised cost 
of a �inancial liability.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of 
�inancial assets other than credit-impaired assets. In case of credit-impaired �inancial assets, the 
Company recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of impairment loss of the 
�inancial asset at EIR. If the �inancial asset is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to 
calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Delayed payment interest (penal interest) levied on customers for delay in repayments/non -
payment of contractual cash�lows is recognised on realisation.

Interest on �inancial assets subsequently measured at fair value through pro�it or loss (FVTPL) is 
recognised at the contractual rate of interest.

	 (b)	 Dividend	income
Dividend income on equity shares is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the 
payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

	 (c)	 Other	revenue	from	operations
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers (other than �inancial assets to 
which Ind AS 109 'Financial instruments' is applicable) based on a comprehensive assessment 
model as set out in Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with customers. The Company identi�ies 
contract(s) with a customer and its performance obligations under the contract, determines the 
transaction price and its allocation to the performance obligations in the contract and recognises 
revenue only on satisfactory completion of performance obligations. Revenue is measured at the 
fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

1.	 Fees	and	commission	income
The Company recognises service and administration charges towards rendering of additional 
services to its loan customers on satisfactory completion of service delivery. Bounce charges 
levied on customers for non-payment of instalment on the contractual date is recognised on 
realisation.

Fees on value added services and products are recognised on rendering of services and products 
to the customer.
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Distribution income is earned by distribution of services and products of other entities under 
distribution arrangements. The income so earned is recognised on successful distribution on 
behalf of other entities subject to there being no signi�icant uncertainty of its recovery.

Foreclosure charges are collected from loan customers for early payment/closure of loan and are 
recognised on realisation.

2.	 Net	gain	on	fair	value	changes
The Company designates certain �inancial assets for subsequent measurement at fair value 
through pro�it or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The 
Company recognises gains on fair value change of �inancial assets measured at FVTPL and 
realised gains on derecognition of �inancial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI on net basis.

3.	 Sale	of	service
The Company, on de-recognition of �inancial assets where a right to service the derecognised 
�inancial assets for a fee is retained, recognises the fair value of future service fee income over 
service obligations cost on net basis as service fee income in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss and, 
correspondingly creates a service asset in Balance Sheet. Any subsequent increase in the fair 
value of service assets is recognised as service income and any decrease is recognised as an 
expense in the period in which it occurs. The embedded interest component in the service asset is 
recognised as interest income in line with Ind AS 109 'Financial instruments'.

4.	 Other	operating	income
The Company recognises income on recoveries of �inancial assets written off on realisation or 
when the right to receive the same without any uncertainties of recovery is established.

	 (d)	 Taxes
Incomes are recognised net of the goods and services tax, wherever applicable. Company not 
having GST no because company is NBFC and only having interest Income. 

(II)	 Expenditures:

	 (a)	 Finance	costs
Company not having any Borrowing costs on �inancial liabilities. 

Fees	and	commission	expense
Fees and commission expenses which are not directly linked to the sourcing of �inancial assets, 
such as commission/incentive incurred on value added services and products distribution, 
recovery charges and fees payable for management of portfolio etc., are recognised in the 
Statement of Pro�it and Loss on an accrual basis.
	 (b)	 Other	expenses
Expenses are recognised on accrual basis net of the goods and services tax, except where credit 
for the input tax is not statutorily permitted.
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(III)	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other short term, highly liquid investments 
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash and which are subject to an insigni�icant risk of changes in value.

(IV)	 Financial	instruments
A �inancial instrument is de�ined as any contract that gives rise to a �inancial asset of one entity 
and a �inancial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and payables, 
loan receivables, investments in securities and subsidiaries, debt securities and other 
borrowings, preferential and equity capital etc. are some examples of �inancial instruments.

All the �inancial instruments are recognised on the date when the Company becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of the �inancial instruments. For tradable securities, the Company 
recognises the �inancial instruments on settlement date.

(a)	 Financial	assets
Financial assets include cash, or an equity instrument of another entity, or a contractual 
right to receive cash or another �inancial asset from another entity. Few examples of 
�inancial assets are loan receivables, investment in equity and debt instruments, trade 
receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Initial	measurement
All �inancial assets are recognised initially at fair value including transaction costs that 
are attributable to the acquisition of �inancial assets except in the case of �inancial assets 
recorded at FVTPL where the transaction costs are charged to pro�it or loss. Generally, the 
transaction price is treated as fair value unless proved to the contrary.

Subsequent	measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, �inancial assets are classi�ied into four 
categories as per the Company's Board approved policy:
(i) Debt instruments at amortised cost
(ii) Debt instruments at FVOCI
(iii) Debt instruments at FVTPL
(iv) Equity instruments designated under FVOCI

(i)	 Debt	instruments	at	amortised	cost
The Company measures its �inancial assets at amortised cost if both the following conditions are 
met:

• The asset is held within a business model of collecting contractual cash �lows; and

• Contractual terms of the asset give rise on speci�ied dates to cash �lows that are Sole 
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgment and considers relevant factors 
such as the nature of portfolio, and the period for which the interest rate is set.
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The Company determines its business model at the level that best re�lects how it manages groups 
of �inancial assets to achieve its business objective. The Company's business model is not 
assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios. If 
cash �lows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's 
original expectations, the Company does not change the classi�ication of the remaining �inancial 
assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly 
originated �inancial assets going forward.

The business model of the Company for assets subsequently measured at amortised cost 
category is to hold and collect contractual cash �lows. However, considering the economic 
viability of carrying the delinquent portfolios on the books of the Company, it may enter into 
immaterial and/or infrequent transactions to sell these portfolios to banks and/or asset 
reconstruction companies without affecting the business model of the Company.

After initial measurement, such �inancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost on 
effective interest rate (EIR). For further details, refer note no. 2.2(I)(a). The expected credit loss 
(ECL) calculation for debt instruments at amortised cost is explained in subsequent notes in this 
section.

(ii)	 Debt	instruments	at	FVOCI
The Company subsequently classi�ies its �inancial assets as FVOCI, only if both of the following 
criteria are met:

• the objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash �lows 
and selling the �inancial assets; and

• Contractual terms of the asset give rise on speci�ied dates to cash �lows that are Solely 
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured at each reporting date at fair 
value with such changes being recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). The interest 
income on these assets is recognised in pro�it or loss. The ECL calculation for debt instruments at 
FVOCI is explained in subsequent notes in this section.

Debt instruments such as long-term investments in Government securities to meet regulatory 
liquid asset requirement of the Company's deposit program are classi�ied as FVOCI.

On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassi�ied 
from other comprehensive income to pro�it or loss.

(iii)	 Debt	instruments	at	FVTPL
The Company classi�ies �inancial assets which are held for trading under FVTPL category. Held 
for trading assets are recorded and measured in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Interest and 
dividend incomes are recorded in Statement of Pro�it and Loss, according to the terms of the 
contract, or when the right to receive the same has been established. Gain and losses on changes 
in fair value of debt instruments are recognised on net basis through pro�it or loss.
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The Company's investments into mutual funds, Government securities (trading portfolio) and 
certi�icate of deposits for trading and short-term cash �low management have been classi�ied 
under this category.

(iv)	 Equity	investments	designated	under	FVOCI
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 'Financial instruments' are measured at fair value. 
The Company has strategic investments in equity for which it has elected to present subsequent 
changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The classi�ication is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable.

Derecognition of �inancial assets
The Company derecognises a �inancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a �inancial asset) 
when:

• The right to receive cash �lows from the asset has expired; or

• The Company has transferred its right to receive cash �lows from the asset or has assumed 
an obligation to pay the received cash �lows in full without material delay to a third party 
under an assignment arrangement and the Company has transferred substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset. Once the asset is derecognised, the Company does not have 
any continuing involvement in the same.

On derecognition of a �inancial asset in its entirety, the difference between:

• the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and

• the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability 
assumed) is recognised in pro�it or loss.

Financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost are generally held for collection of 
contractual cash�low. The Company on looking at economic viability of certain portfolios 
measured at amortised cost may enter into immaterial and/or infrequent transaction of sale of 
portfolio which doesn’t affect the business model of the Company.

Reclassi�ication of �inancial assets
The Company changes classi�ication of its �inancial assets only on account of changes in its 
business model for managing those �inancial assets. Such reclassi�ications are given prospective 
impact as per the principles laid down in Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments.’

Impairment of �inancial assets
ECL are recognised for �inancial assets held under amortised cost, debt instruments measured at 
FVOCI, and certain loan commitments as per the Board approved policy.

Financial assets where no signi�icant increase in credit risk has been observed are considered to 
be in ‘stage 1’ for which a 12 months ECL is recognised. Financial assets that are considered to 
have signi�icant increase in credit risk are considered to be in ‘stage 2' and those which are in 
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default or for which there is objective evidence of impairment are considered to be in ‘stage 3’. 
Life time ECL is recognised for stage 2 and stage 3 �inancial assets.

At initial recognition, allowance (or provision in the case of loan commitments) is required for 
ECL towards default events that are possible in the next 12 months, or less, where the remaining 
life is less than 12 months.

In the event of a signi�icant increase in credit risk, allowance (or provision) is required for ECL 
towards all possible default events over the expected life of the �inancial instrument (‘lifetime 
ECL’).

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowances) are written off in full, when there is no 
realistic prospect of recovery.

Treatment of the different stages of �inancial assets and the methodology of determination of ECL

(a)	 Credit	impaired	(stage	3)
The Company recognises a �inancial asset to be credit impaired and in stage 3 by considering 
relevant objective evidence, primarily whether:

• Contractual payments of either principal or interest are past due for more than 90 days;

• The loan is otherwise considered to be in default

Restructured loans where repayment terms are renegotiated as compared to the original 
contracted terms due to signi�icant credit distress of the borrower are classi�ied as credit 
impaired. Such loans continue to be in stage 3 until they exhibit regular payment of renegotiated 
principal and interest over a minimum observation of period, typically 12 months- post 
renegotiation, and there are no other indicators of impairment. Having satis�ied the conditions of 
timely payment over the observation period these loans could be transferred to stage 1 or 2 and a 
fresh assessment of the risk of default be done for such loans.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost 
amount i.e., gross carrying amount less ECL allowance.

(b)	 Signi�icant	increase	in	credit	risk	(stage	2)
An assessment of whether credit risk has increased signi�icantly since initial recognition is 
performed at each reporting period by considering the change in the risk of default of the loan 
exposure. However, unless identi�ied at an earlier stage, 30 days past due is considered as an 
indication of �inancial assets to have suffered a signi�icant increase in credit risk. Based on other 
indications such as borrower’s frequently delaying payments beyond due dates though not 30 
days past due are included in stage 2 for mortgage loans.

The measurement of risk of defaults under stage 2 is computed on homogenous portfolios, 
generally by nature of loans, tenors, underlying collateral, geographies and borrower pro�iles. 
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The default risk is assessed using PD (probability of default) derived from past behavioral trends 
of default across the identi�ied homogenous portfolios. These past trends factor in the past 
customer behavioral trends, credit transition probabilities and macroeconomic conditions. The 
assessed PDs are then aligned considering future economic conditions that are determined to 
have a bearing on ECL.

(c)	 Without	signi�icant	increase	in	credit	risk	since	initial	recognition	(stage	1)
ECL resulting from default events that are possible in the next 12 months are recognised for 
�inancial instruments in stage 1. The Company has ascertained default possibilities on past 
behavioral trends witnessed for each homogenous portfolio using application/behavioral score 
cards and other performance indicators, determined statistically.

(d)	 Measurement	of	ECL
The assessment of credit risk and estimation of ECL are unbiased and probability weighted. It 
incorporates all information that is relevant including information about past events, current 
conditions and reasonable forecasts of future events and economic conditions at the reporting 
date. In addition, the estimation of ECL takes into account the time value of money. Forward 
looking economic scenarios determined with reference to external forecasts of economic 
parameters that have demonstrated a linkage to the performance of our portfolios over a period 
of time have been applied to determine impact of macro-economic factors.

The Company has calculated ECL using three main components: a probability of default (PD), a 
loss given default (LGD) and the exposure at default (EAD). ECL is calculated by multiplying the 
PD, LGD and EAD and adjusted for time value of money using a rate which is a reasonable 
approximation of EIR.

• Determination of PD is covered above for each stage of ECL.

• EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking into account the repayment of 
principal and interest from the Balance Sheet date to the date of default together with any 
expected drawdowns of committed facilities.

• LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, 
among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to 
be realised and the time value of money.

The Company recalibrates above components of its ECL model on a periodical basis by using the 
available incremental and recent information as well as assessing changes to its statistical 
techniques for a granular estimation of ECL.

(b)	 Financial	liabilities
Financial liabilities include liabilities that represent a contractual obligation to deliver cash or 
another �inancial asset to another entity, or a contract that may or will be settled in the entity's 
own equity instruments. Few examples of �inancial liabilities are trade payables, debt securities 
and other borrowings and subordinated debts.
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Initial	measurement
All �inancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s �inancial liabilities 
include trade payables, other payables, debt securities and other borrowings.

Subsequent	measurement
After initial recognition, all �inancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the EIR method [Refer note no 2.2(I)(a)]. Any gains or losses arising on derecognition of 
liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss.

Derecognition
The Company derecognises a �inancial liability when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged, cancelled or expired.

(c)	 	Offsetting	of	�inancial	instruments
Financial assets and �inancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance 
Sheet only if there is an enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts with an intention 
to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(V)	 Investment	in	subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries is recognised at cost and are not adjusted to fair value at the end of 
each reporting period as allowed by Ind AS 27 ‘Separate �inancial statement’. Cost of investment 
represents amount paid for acquisition of the said investment and a proportionate recognition of 
the fair value of shares granted to employees of subsidiary under a group share based payment 
arrangement.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period, if there are any indications that the 
said investment may be impaired. If so, the Company estimates the recoverable value/amount of 
the investment and provides for impairment, if any i.e. the de�icit in the recoverable value over 
cost.

The company has not any subsidiary in the current reporting period.

(VI)	 Taxes

(i)	 Current	tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income 
Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) prescribed therein. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting 
date.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside pro�it or loss is recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in other equity. Management periodically 
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evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(ii)	 Deferred	tax
Deferred tax is recognised using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for �inancial reporting purposes 
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable pro�its will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be 
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that suf�icient taxable pro�it will be available to allow all or 
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any, are 
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable pro�its will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside pro�it or loss is recognised either in other 
comprehensive income or in other equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same 
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(VII)	 Property,	plant	and	equipment
Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, consistent with the criteria speci�ied in Ind AS 16 'Property, 
plant and equipment'.

Depreciation	on	property,	plant	and	equipment
1. Depreciation is provided on a pro rata basis for all tangible assets on written-down 
methods over the useful life of assets. 

2. Useful lives of assets are determined by the Management by an internal technical 
assessment except where such assessment suggests a life signi�icantly different from those 
prescribed by Schedule II – Part C of the Companies Act, 2013 where the useful life is as assessed 
and certi�ied by a technical expert.
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3. Depreciation on addition to assets and assets sold during the year is being provided for on 
a pro rata basis with reference to the month in which such asset is added or sold as the case may be.

4. Assets having unit value up to Rs. 5,000 is depreciated fully in the �inancial year of 
purchase of asset.

5. An item of property, plant and equipment and any signi�icant part initially recognised is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic bene�its are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included under other 
income in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

6. Currently company have only salvage value of tangible assets and management has 
decided not to charge depreciation on these assets hence the salvage value of tangible assets 
shown on the face of the balance sheets.

7.  The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each �inancial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(VIII)	 Intangible	assets	and	amortisation	thereof
Intangible assets, representing software’s are initially recognised at cost and subsequently 
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment. The company has 
computer software and it depreciated as per written down methods. Currently company has 
salvage value of these assets hence management is decided not to charge depreciation on these 
assets and salvage value of the assets are shown on the face of the Balance sheet. 

(IX)	 Impairment	of	non-�inancial	assets
An assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date to ascertain whether there is any indication 
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable 
amount of asset is determined. If the carrying value of relevant asset is higher than the 
recoverable amount, the carrying value is written down accordingly.

(X)	 Provisions	and	contingent	liabilities
The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that 
probably requires an out�low of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an out�low of resources. The Company also 
discloses present obligations for which a reliable estimate cannot be made. When there is a 
possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of out�low of 
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
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(XI)	 Foreign	currency	translation	Initial	recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign 
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at 
the date of the transaction.

Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are re-translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the 
reporting date. Non- monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost 
denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction.

Exchange	differences
All exchange differences are accounted in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss.

(XII)	 Segment	Reporting:
The company operates mainly in the business of lending �inance, accordingly there are no 
separate reportable segment as per Ind-AS 108-Operating Segment.

(XIII)	 Retirement	and	other	employee	bene�its

(i)	 Gratuity
Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity no provision created due to there is no 
employee in the company he is completed 5 years. 

(ii)	 Superannuation
The company has not made any de�ined contribution to superannuation fund.

(iii)	 Provident	fund
The company has not provided provident funds to its employees. 

(iv)	 Compensated	absences
At Privilege leave entitlements are recognised as a liability as per the rules of the Company. The 
liability for accumulated leaves which can be availed and/or encashed at any time during the 
tenure of employment. The liability for accumulated leaves which is eligible for encashment 
within the same calendar year is provided for at prevailing salary rate for the entire unavailed 
leave balance as at the Balance Sheet date. But company not having any employee who is having 
accumulated leaves.  

(XIV)	 Employee	Stock	Option	Scheme
The Company has not provided employee stock options to its employees.

(XV)	 Leases
 The Company has not any leases hence Ind AS 116 is not applicable to the company.
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Measurement	of	Lease	Liability
At the time of initial recognition, the Company measures lease liability as present value of all 
lease payments discounted using the Company’s incremental cost of borrowing and directly 
attributable costs. Subsequently, the lease liability is –

i. increased by interest on lease liability;
ii. reduced by lease payments made; and
iii. remeasured to re�lect any reassessment or lease modi�ications speci�ied in Ind AS 116 

'Leases', or to re�lect revised �ixed lease payments.

Measurement	of	Right-of-use	assets
At the time of initial recognition, the Company measures 'Right-of-use assets' as present value of 
all lease payments discounted using the Company’s incremental cost of borrowing w.r.t said lease 
contract. Subsequently, 'Right-of-use assets' is measured using cost model i.e. at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses adjusted for any 
remeasurement of the lease liability speci�ied in Ind AS 116 'Leases'.

Depreciation on 'Right-of-use assets' is provided on straight line basis over the lease period.

The exception permitted in Ind AS 116 for low value assets and short-term leases has been 
adopted by Company.

(XVI)	 Fair	value	measurement
The Company measures its qualifying �inancial instruments at fair value on each Balance Sheet 
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received against sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place in the accessible principal market or the most advantageous accessible 
market as applicable.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
suf�icient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level 
of the fair value hierarchy.
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